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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 or 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE

ACT of 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 20(

or

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 or 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File No. 001-33346

SUMMER INFANT, INC.

Delaware 2C-199461¢
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporatic (I.LR.S. Employer Identification No
1275 Park East Drive, Woonsocket, Rhode Islar 02895
(Zip Code)

(Address of Principal Executive Office

(401) 671-6550
(Registrant's Telephone Number, Including Area Gode

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(bhefAct:

Title of each class Name of Exchange on which registere

Common Stock, Par Value $.0( Nasdaq Capital Mark

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(ghefAct:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrantiwel-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405%ed8#dturities Act. YESO

NO



Indicate by check mark if the registranhot required to file reports pursuant to Secti8ror Section 15(d) of the Act. YEH NO
5]

Indicate by check mark whether the registr(1) has filed all reports required to be filgdSection 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 modh$or such shorter period that the registrang wejuired to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementsife past 90 days. YE& NO O

Indicate by check mark whether the regigthas submitted electronically and posted oadtporate Web site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted puntsto Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (8 229.405 of tthiapter) during the preceeding
12 months (or for such shorter period that thestegmt was required to submit and post such fikgSs O NO O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure ofiniguent filers pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatiiK is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant's knowledgelefinitive proxy or information statements incorated by reference in Part Ill of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10{H.

Indicate by check mark whether the registis a large accelerated filer, an accelerated f non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of "accelerated filarge accelerated filer* and "smaller reportirgnpany" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated fileEl Accelerated filer(d Non-accelerated fileid Smaller reporting companixl
(Do not check if a
smaller reporting compan:

Indicate by check mark whether registiara shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 ofkehange Act). YE NO

The aggregate market value of the votimd) @on-voting common equity held by non-affiliatesnputed by reference to the price at
which the common equity was sold, or the averageahd asked price of such common equity, as of mbee 31, 2009 was approximately
$50,991,000.

The number of shares outstanding of thesteant's common stock as of February 1, 20103a437,477 (excluding unvested restricted
shares that have been issued to employees).
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annual report on Form 10-K containsaddition to historical information, forward-loakj statements within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 199%€Be forward-looking statements are based on mare&ag®s current expectations and are
subject to a number of factors and uncertaintidschvcould cause actual results to differ materifithm those described in such statements.
We caution investors that actual results or busigesditions may differ materially from those pigd or suggested in forward-looking
statements as a result of various factors including not limited to, the risk factors describedtble We cannot assure you that we have
identified all the factors that create uncertamtiReaders should not place undue reliance on fdreaking statements.

PART |
Iltem 1. Business
Background

On March 6, 2007, under an Agreement aad$Pbf Reorganization, dated as of September B @@@quisition Agreement"), KBL
Healthcare Acquisition Corp. Il ("KBL"), and its why owned subsidiary, Sll Acquisition Corp. ("Adgition Sub"), consummated a
transaction by which (i) Summer Infant, Inc. ("SWas merged with and into Acquisition Sub anddli)of the outstanding capital stock of
each of Summer Infant Europe, Limited ("SIE") andr®ner Infant Asia, Ltd. ("SIA" and, collectively it SIl and SIE, the "Targets") was
acquired directly by KBL. As used in this Repohte term "Summer" includes each of the Targets. gl in this Report, the term "Company"
means the registrant on a post-acquisition basigvi@rch 7, 2007, the securities of the Company cenwued listing on the Nasdaq Capital
Market under the symbols SUMR (common stock), SUMRVYdrrants) and SUMRU (units).

Effective upon closing, the Company chaniggdame to Summer Infant, Inc. and Sl changeddme to Summer Infant (USA), Inc.
Thus, the Company is now a holding company callethi8er Infant, Inc. operating through its wholly-adhsubsidiaries, Summer Infant
(USA), Inc., Summer Infant Europe, Limited ("SIEQummer Infant Canada, Ltd. ("SIC") and Summernhfssia, Ltd. ("SIA").

General

We are a designer, marketer, and distriboftbranded juvenile health, safety and wellnessipcts which are sold principally to large
North American and UK retailers. We currently hawere than 80 proprietary products in various prodategories including nurse
audio/video monitors, safety gates, durable batkdyets, bed rails, related health and safety prisgdbooster and potty seats, bouncers and a
product line of soft goods/bedding. In the past ywars, the Company has completed several acguisitind therefore added items such as
cribs, baby gear, infant sleep positioners, heggpaiis, portable changing pads, as well as nuieayfeeding accessories. Our products are
sold primarily to U.S. retailers including BabiedJR, Target, KMart, Buy Buy Baby, Meijer, Baby DegBurlington Coat Factory) and Wal-
Mart.

We maintain through SIE a sales, marketing distribution office in England, which servidhe United Kingdom and other parts of
Europe. SIE's largest customers are Mothercares Roys, Argos, and Tesco. In 2009, Summer Infad®A}) including international sales
managed out of the U.S., accounted for approxim&@® of total Company revenue.

We maintain through SIA a product developtneales, engineering and quality assurance office

1
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Strategy

Our strategy is to grow our sales througiagety of methods, including:

. increased product penetration (more products dt siace);

. increased store penetration (more stores withih eatail customer)

. new products (at existing and new custome

. new mass merchant retail customers;

. new distribution channels (food and drug chaingepclubs, home centers, web-based retailers);
. new geographies (international expansit

. new product categories; and

. acquisitions.

We have been able to grow our annual resghistorically through a combination of all of gigove factors. Each year, we have been
to expand the number of products in our main digtidbn channel, mass merchant retailers, and hHawveadded new customers each year.
Therefore, even without new product introductioms,could grow our business by simply selling mdrewr existing product line to existing
customers.

In the future, our growth strategy will teecontinue to develop and sell new products toexisting customer base, sell new and existing
products to new customers (or expand relationshifisexisting customers), to expand our sales ofipcts from our soft goods product line,
and to expand in the UK and in other geographioreg(including Japan, Mexico and Australia, amotiters). In addition, there are a number
of potential acquisition candidates that could besped in order to obtain new innovative producesy product categories, new retail
customers or new sales territories. There are appately 400 active juvenile product companieswbfch approximately 300 have less than
$10 million in sales. In addition, there are vasquoduct categories that we do not currently cdmpe including car seats, walkers, strollers,
and other categories. We may look to develop our pmducts in these categories or attempt to gatiraece into these categories through
acquisitions.

Products

We sell products in a number of differeategories, including: Infant bath products; saf@tes; audio and video monitors; high chairs
and other baby "gear"; infant bedding; cribs ansery furniture; swaddling blankets; and many otaegories. Most of the products are sold
under the Summer Infant brand; the Company alseséasral licensing arrangements to sell produatieudifferent brands. No single product
generated more than 10% of sales for the year ebdedmber 31, 2009.

Product Development and Design

Our management believes that product dewedmt is a critical element of our strategy anctess to date. Our product strategy is to
produce proprietary products that provide distiretienefits, are visually appealing, provide commece and will appeal to the mid-tier and
upper-tier buyers. Our U.S. retailers are stratdlyienotivated to buy innovative, uparket products. Our main product development effar
located at our Rhode Island corporate office, beitalso have development efforts in China, Color&baith Carolina, Pennsylvania, and the
United Kingdom.
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Suppliers and Manufacturing

Except for certain injection-molded batbgupotty seats and gates, which are manufactareiU.S., substantially all of our other
products are manufactured in Asia (particularlyr@hi We use many different suppliers and we owmualds. Therefore, we are not
dependent on any one manufacturer. SIA providesithsa local sourcing presence and the abilitywersee quality, electronic engineering
other issues that may arise during production.

Transportation of Asia-made goods to ouralvauses typically takes three to four weeks, deipgron the location of the warehouse. We
maintain our inventory at warehouses located irLthited States, Canada, Asia, and the United Kingddost of our customers pick up their
goods at regional warehouses. We also use UPSthedanmmon carriers to arrange shipments to cuat®mho request such arrangements,
primarily smaller retailers and specialty stores.

We use several manufacturers in the UiSodio injection molded products that account fameen 10% and 15% of our annual net sales.
Sales and Marketing

Our sales are primarily derived from thie s juvenile health, safety and wellness prodacts are recognized upon transfer of title of
product to our customers. Our products are markateldsold through several distribution channelligtiog chain retailers, specialty retailers
and direct to consumers.

Sales are made utilizing standard credit$eof 30 to 60 days. We generally accept retuntg for defective merchandise.
Competition

The juvenile health, safety and wellneshigtry has many participants, none of which havaidant market share, though certain
companies have disproportionate strength in cesagments. Our largest direct competitors are Dodklstries (Safety 1st and Cosco brands),
Evenflo (Evenflo, Gerry, and Snugli brands), KidaBds, Inc., Fisher-Price (part of Mattel, Inc.)gTHirst Years (a subsidiary of RC2
Corporation) and Graco (a subsidiary of Newell Rerofaid). In addition, we compete in certain of product lines with a number of private
companies, such as KidCo, Inc. and Munchkin.

The primary methods of competition in thdustry consist of product innovation, brand posiig, quality, price and other factors suc
timely distribution. Our competitive strengths imdé our experienced product development staffability to develop new products, brand
positioning, relationships with major retailersdahe quality and pricing of our products.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of patents, li@nand trade secrets to protect our intellectugdgnty. Our patents currently in effect include
various design features related to bedrails, indaats, bouncers, and potty chairs, with seveharqiatents pending for monitors, baby swings,
and other items. The patents expire at variousgtiover the next 20 years. We also have licenseeagmets relating to the use of patented
technology owned by third parties in certain of ptoducts.

Customers

Our top 10 customers in North America gl Wnited Kingdom together comprised over 80% afgales in fiscal 2009. Some of these
customers include Babies R Us/Toys R Us, TargdWldtt, Buy Buy Baby, and Wal-Mart in North Ameriand in the United Kingdom,
Mothercare.
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Seasonality

There are not significant variations ins®®l demand for our products. Sales to our retalomers are generally higher in the time fri
when retailers take initial shipments of new pradu€hese orders usually incorporate enough praduit each store plus additional amounts
to be kept at the customer's distribution centhe fiming of these initial shipments varies by oustr depending on when they finalize store
layouts for the upcoming year, and whether theeeaay mid-year product introductions.

Geographic Regions

In 2009, Summer Infant (USA), includingamational sales managed out of the U.S., accodatepproximately 90% of total Company
revenue; the remaining sales were made in Canagl&Jriited Kingdom, and all other geographies.

Regulatory Matters

We obtain all necessary regulatory agemgravals for each of our products. In the U.S.s¢happrovals may include, among others, one
or more of the Consumer Product Safety CommissiBREC"), the American Society of Test Methods ("A87, the Juvenile Products
Manufacturing Association ("JPMA"), the Federal Goonications Commission ("FCC") and the Food andgDxdministration ("FDA"). We
conduct our own internal testing, which utilize¥@eseeable use and abuse” testing method aresigreed to subject each product to the
"worst case scenario.” Our products are also fretlyigested by independent government certified lab

Insurance

We carry a product liability insurance pylthat provides us with $10,000,000 of liabiligverage with a minimal deductible. We consult
with our insurers to ascertain appropriate liapitiboverage for our product mix. We anticipate imsiag our insurance coverage in the future in
line with our expanding sales and product breadth.

Employees

As of December 31, 2009, we employed d tfta78 people, 107 of whom work in the headquaréad distribution centers in Rhode
Island. Our employees are not covered by a collediargaining agreement. We consider our emplogiagions to be good.

Available Information

We maintain our corporate websitevatw.summerinfant.coand we make available, free of charge, throughweissite our annual repi
on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, carreports on Form 8-K, and amendments to thosertefhat we file with or furnish to the
Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), as asarasonably practicable after we electroniddéythat material with, or furnish it to,
the SEC. Information on our website is not parthig report. This report includes all material imfmtion about us that is included on our
website and is otherwise required to be includetthimreport.
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

If any of the events or circumstances dbedrin the following risks actually occur, our iness, financial condition or results of
operations could be materially adversely affechedhose cases, the trading price of our commockstould decline.

The concentration of our business with a base of retail customers that make no binding long-term commitments means that economic
difficulties or changesin the purchasing policies of our major customers could have a significant impact on our business.

A number of large, retail customers accdant majority of our net sales. The customer geaterated more than 10% of net sales for the
year ended December 31, 2009 was Toys R Us (52%tafales). Because of the concentration of ounbss with this customer and beca
we have no long term contracts with this custoroer,success depends on our customers' willingilegsrchase and provide shelf space for
our products. An adverse change in our relationgfitip any of our large customers or a change irfittancial viability of any of these
customers could adversely affect our results ofatpmns and financial condition.

Our ability to grow and compete will be harmed if we do not successfully satisfy consumer preferences, enhance existing products, develop
and introduce new products, and achieve market acceptance of those products.

Our business and operating results depangelly upon the appeal of our products. Consunefepnces, particularly among parents, who
are the end purchasers of our products, are cahstdranging. Our success will, in large part, depen our ability to identify emerging trends
in the health, safety and wellness marketplace dasthn products that address consumer demandrane gafe and cost effective. Our proc
offerings compete with those of many other compgmgany of which are much larger and enjoy broadand recognition and significant
distribution channel relationships, which means tha market position is always at risk. Our agitib maintain and increase our current me
share will depend upon our ability to anticipatamges in consumer preferences and satisfy thefergmees, enhance existing products,
develop and introduce new products and establidigemw distribution channels for these productsl altimately achieve market acceptance
of these products.

We are dependent on key personnel, and our ability to grow and compete in our industry will be harmed if we do not retain the continued
services of our key personnel, or we fail to identify, hire, and retain additional qualified personnel.

We are dependent on the efforts of our gameent team, and the loss of services of membeygrahanagement team, each of whom has
substantial experience in the juvenile health,tgadad wellness markets, could have an adverseteaffeour business. If any members of
management leave, their departure could have agrseleffect on our operations and could adverggdgteour ability to design new products
and to maintain and grow the distribution chanf@®ur products.

In addition, if our operations continuegimw in a manner consistent with our historicalvgtorates, it will be necessary for us to attract
and retain additional qualified personnel. The reaifkr qualified and talented product developmesrspnnel in the consumer goods market,
and the juvenile health, safety and wellness prizdonarket specifically is intensely competitivewié are unable to attract or retain qualified
personnel as needed, the growth of our operatioulsl e slowed or hampered. However, we believeShanmer Infant's compensation
including salary, performance-based bonuses, antt stward programs provides incentives that arepetitive within our industry.

5
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I ntellectual property claimsrelating to our products could increase our costs and adversely affect our business.

We have, from time to time, received clamhslleged infringement of patents relating totaier of our products, and we may face similar
claims in the future. These claims relate to allegatent infringement and are primarily the resfitiewly issued patents that were not in force
when we initially brought the subject products tarket. The defense of intellectual property clagas be costly and time consuming, even in
circumstances where the claim is without merit. WM&y be required to pay substantial damages oeswitit costs in order to resolve these
types of claims. In addition, these claims couldarially harm our brand name, reputation and ojerat

Werely on foreign suppliersin Asia to manufacture the majority of our products, and any adverse change in our relationship with our
suppliers could harm our business.

We rely on numerous third-party suppliersated in Asia for the manufacture of most of awdpicts. While we believe that alternative
suppliers could be located if required, our prodigatrcing could be affected if any of these supplé® not continue to manufacture our
products in required quantities or at all, or vitie required levels of quality. We enter into pa®h orders with our foreign suppliers and dc
enter into any long term contracts. In additioffficlilties encountered by these suppliers, suclirasaccident, natural disasters, outbreaks of
contagious diseases, or political unrest, coultdradlisrupt production at the affected locatiamesulting in delay or cancellation of orders. /
of these events could result in delayed deliveniess of our products, causing reduced sales amd twaour reputation and brand name.

Increasesin the cost of materials or labor used to manufacture our products could decrease our profitability and therefore negatively impact
our business and financial condition.

Because our products are manufacturedity-plarty suppliers, we do not directly purchase tiaterials used in the manufacture of our
products. However, the prices paid by us to thepelgers could increase if raw materials, laborothrer costs increase. If we cannot pass these
increases along to our customers, our profitability be adversely affected.

Because we rely on foreign suppliers and we sell in to foreign markets, we are subject to numerous risks associated with international
business that could increase our costs or disrupt the supply of our products, resulting in a negative impact on our business and financial
condition.

Our international operations subject usgks, including:

. economic and political instabilit

. restrictive actions by foreign governments,

. greater difficulty enforcing intellectual propenights and weaker laws protecting intellectual gy rights,

. changes in import duties or import or export resiois,

. timely shipping of product and unloading of prodticbugh West Coast ports, as well as timely trdekvery to oul
warehouses,

. complications complying with the laws and polica#ghe United States affecting the importation obds, including duties

quotas, and taxes, and

. complications in complying with trade and foreigex taws.
Any of these events or circumstances cdiddupt the supply of our products or increaseexrenses.

6
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Product liability, product recalls, and other claims relating to the use of our products could increase our costs.

Because we sell infant and juvenile heal#tfiety and wellness products to consumers, wepiamuct liability risks relating to the use of
our products. We also must comply with a varietpafduct safety and product testing regulationsdfface a product liability or other claim
or fail to comply with these regulations, we mayshibject to costly litigations, damage awards,dioesettlement costs that exceed our
insurance coverage. We also would incur significarsts in connection with any product recall reguuients. Even if a product liability or otf
claim is without merit, the claim could harm oupugation and divert management's attention anduress from our business.

Competition in our markets could reduce our net sales and profitability.

We operate in highly competitive markete ¥dmpete with several large domestic and fore@mpanies and with other producers of
infant products. Many of our competitors have langgerating histories, greater brand recognitiowl greater financial, technical, marketing
and other resources than we have. In addition, e face competition from new participants in ourkess because the infant product indu
has limited barriers to entry. We experience pciaspetition for our products, competition for skhegface at retailers and competition for
licenses, all of which may increase in the futlireee cannot compete successfully in the future,ret sales and profitability will likely
decline.

We may experience difficultiesin integrating strategic acquisitions.

As part of our growth strategy, we inteagtirsue acquisitions that are consistent withnoigsion and enable us to leverage our
competitive strengths. The integration of acquirethpanies and their operations into our operatiwslves a number of risks, including:

. the acquired business may experience losses thit adversely affect our profitability;

. unanticipated costs relating to the integratioaajuired businesses may increase our expenses;

. possible failure to obtain any necessary conserttsettransfer of licenses or other agreementiseoftquired compan

. possible failure to maintain customer, licensor atiger relationships after the closing of the teantion of the acquired compa
. difficulties in achieving planned c-savings and synergies may increase our expensEsmase our net sall

. diversion of management's attention could impagirthbility to effectively manage our business agiens; anc

. unanticipated management or operational problentialatities may adversely affect our profitabilignd financial condition.

In addition, any future acquisitions oréstments may result in:

. issuances of dilutive equity securities, which rhaysold at a discount to market pri
. use of significant amounts of ca:

. the incurrence of debt;

. the assumption of significant liabilities;

. unfavorable financing term

. large on-time expenses; ar
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. the creation of intangible assets, including godidwie write-down of which may result in signifisacharges to earnings.

Our debt covenants may limit our ability to complete acquisitions, incur debt, make investments, sell assets, merge or complete other
significant transactions.

Our loan agreements include provisions piete limitations on a number of our activitiex;luding our ability to:

. incur additional debt;

. create liens on our assets or make guarantees;

. make certain investments or loa

. pay dividends; or

. dispose of or sell assets or enter into a mergsinaifar transaction.

We could issue additional common stock, which might dilute the book value of our common stock.

Our board of directors has authority, withaction or vote of our stockholders in most cagegsue all or a part of our authorized but
unissued shares. These stock issuances could =anadrice that reflects a discount from the ttwement trading price of our common stock.
In addition, to raise capital, we may need to isse@urities that are convertible into or exchanfgetds a significant amount of our common
stock. These issuances would dilute current shidetsd ownership percentage which would have theeebf reducing their influence on
matters on which stockholders vote, and could eitbe book value of Summer Infant common stockcl8tolders may incur additional
dilution if holders of stock options, whether curily outstanding or subsequently granted, exetisi options, or if warrant holders exercise
their warrants to purchase shares of Summer laf@mimon stock.

Asa " thinly-traded" stock, large sales can place downward pressure on our stock price.

Our common stock experiences periods wheaould be considered "thinly traded.” Finance seartions resulting in a large amount of
newly issued shares that become readily tradablether events that cause current stockholdersltsisares, could place downward pressure
on the trading price of our stock. In addition, thek of a robust resale market may require a $tolcler to sell a large number of shares in
increments over time to mitigate any adverse impéatte sales on the market price of our stock.

Anti-takeover provisionsin our organizational documents and Delaware law may limit the ability of our stockholdersto control our policies
and effect a change of control of our company and may prevent attempts by our stockholdersto replace or remove our current management,
which may not be in your best interests.

There are provisions in our certificatéraforporation and bylaws that may discourage altparty from making a proposal to acquire us,
even if some of our stockholders might considemqttugosal to be in their best interests, and mayegnt attempts by our stockholders to
replace or remove our current management. Thesgsfons include the following:

. our certificate of incorporation provides for thredasses of directors with the term of office okarass expiring each year,
commonly referred to as a staggered board. By ptagstockholders from voting on the election aireathan one class of
directors at any annual meeting of stockholdeis,fgtovision may have the effect of keeping theeurmembers of our board
of directors in control for a longer period of tirtfean stockholders may desire;

8
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. our certificate of incorporation authorizes our tebaf directors to issue shares of preferred switthout stockholder approval
and to establish the preferences and rights opagferred stock issued, which would allow the bdarissue one or more clas
or series of preferred stock that could discouagdelay a tender offer or change in control; and

. our bylaws require advance written notice of staiétr proposals and director nominations.

Additionally, we are subject to Section 203he Delaware General Corporation Law, whichgémeral, imposes restrictions upon
acquirers of 15% or more of our stock. Finally, tioard of directors may in the future adopt othetgrtive measures, such as a stockholder
rights plan, which could delay, deter or prevenhange of control.

The global economic downturn could result in a reduced demand for our products and increased volatility in our stock price.

Current uncertainty in global economic dtinds pose a risk to the overall economy as coresarand retailers may defer or choose not to
make purchases in response to tighter credit agdtive financial news, which could negatively affdemand for our products. Additionally,
due to the weak economic conditions and tightemedicenvironment, some of our retailers and distiors may not have the same purchasing
power, leading to lower purchases of our produmtpfacement into distribution channels. Conseduedémand for our products could be
materially different from expectations, which coulegatively affect our profitability and cause stock price to decline.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Iltem 2. Properties

We are headquartered in a 52,000 squail@yfac Woonsocket, Rhode Island. We have a seyear lease on this facility, with an option
to extend for an additional five years.

We have a 36 month, 3,750 square foot l&asaffice space in South Carolina, which expire2012. We have a 24 month lease for o
space in Hong Kong, which expires in 2011, as agkh 60 month lease for office space in the Urkieddom, which expires in 2012.

We maintain inventory at leased warehois€alifornia (approximately 220,000 square feetjal includes two warehouses), Rhode
Island (approximately 104,000 square feet), Carfapproximately 31,000 square feet), and the UK (@dmately 16,000 square feet). These
leases expire at various times between 2010 ang. 201

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
None.
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Secity Holders
No matter was submitted to a vote of oaclsholders during the fourth quarter of the yeateshDecember 31, 2009.

9
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PART Il
ltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases &quity Securities
Price Range of Common Stc

On March 7, 2007, our common stock, wagamd units commenced listing on the Nasdaq Cadaaket under the symbols "SUMR",
"SUMRW" and "SUMRU", respectively.

On March 17, 2008, we announced that effedflarch 28, 2008, the units will be separated itd component securities, consisting of
share of common stock and two warrants. As a rdsedfinning on March 28, 2008, the units ceasedirtga The warrants expired on April 20,
2009.

The high and low closing prices for our enam stock as reported on the Nasdaq Capital Méokehe periods indicated below were as
follows:

High Low

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 20C

First Quarte! $ 49C $ 3.67
Second Quarte $ 48C $ 3.84
Third Quartel $ 47¢ $ 3.7¢
Fourth Quarte $ 450 $ 2.1C
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 20C

First Quartel $ 236 $ 1.1¢
Second Quarte $ 282 $ 1.5t
Third Quartel $ 5.0C $ 2.01
Fourth Quarte $ 528 $ 4.14

Holders of Common Stor

As of January 25, 2010, there were appreiéty thirteen shareholders of record of our comistonk. Because shares of our common
stock are held by depositaries, brokers and otherimees, the number of beneficial holders of oaret is substantially larger than the number
of record holders.

Dividend Policy

There have been no cash dividends dectarerir common stock since our company was form@ddénds are declared at the sole
discretion of our Board of Directors. Our intentismot to declare cash dividends and retain ahdar our operations.

Issuer Repurchases of Equity Securi

On October 9, 2007, we made a tender tdfetl holders of our warrants to repurchase eaaframt for $1.00. The tender offer expired on
November 8, 2007. The total number of warrants lpased in the tender offer was 14,766,047. All efwarrants which remained after |
tender offer expired on April 20, 2009.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

In connection with the acquisition of tresats of Butterfly Living, LLC ("Butterfly") on Jul17, 2009, the Company issued to Butterfly
213,675 shares (the "Butterfly Shares") of the Canys common stock, par value $0.001 per shardgramaaction exempt from the
registration requirements of the Securities Act®83, as amended (the "Securities Act"). The Bilgt&hares were issued at fair market value
in partial consideration for the purchase by thenfany of substantially all of the assets of Bulyeifhe offer and sale of these shares of
common stock was made to "accredited investorsgeéined in Rule 501 under the Securities Actgiiance on the exemption from
registration provided by Section 4(2) of the Se@siAct.

Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data
N/A
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis &inancial Condition and Results of Operations (dolr amounts in thousands, except
share and per share data)

The information contained in this secti@s been derived from our consolidated financidestants and should be read together with our
consolidated financial statements and related rintdsded elsewhere in this filing.

The following discussion is intended toistsis the assessment of significant changes amtisr related to our results of operations and
financial condition. This discussion and analy$isidd be read in conjunction with our consoliddiedncial statements and notes thereto
included herein. Our business has grown organidalsll of our markets. We derive our revenues ftbmsale of health, safety and wellness
products for infants and toddlers. Our revenueiiged by our ability to design and market desirgireducts, identify business opportunities
and secure new and renew existing distribution ihksn Our income from operations is derived from ahility to generate revenue and collect
cash in excess of labor and other costs of progidimr products and selling, general and adminisgatosts.

Company Overview

We are a designer, marketer, and distritoftbranded juvenile health, safety and wellnesslpcts which are sold principally to large
North American and United Kingdom retailers. Wereuntly have more than 80 proprietary products ifoes product categories includii
nursery audio/video monitors, safety gates, durbbtd products, bed rails, infant thermometersteel health and safety products, booster and
potty seats, cribs, baby gear, bouncers and sofisgjbedding.

Our strategy is to grow our sales througiagety of methods, including:

. increased product penetration (more products dt siace);

. increased store penetration (more stores withih eatail customer);
. new products (at existing and new customers);

. new retail customer:

. acquisitions

. new geographies (international expansion); and

. new product categories.

We have has been able to grow our annuahrees historically through a combination of altlué above factors. Each year, we have been
able to expand the number of products in our matridution channel, mass merchant retailers, anelalso added new customers each year.
Therefore, even without new product introductioms,could grow our business by simply selling mdreuwr existing product line to existing
customers.

In the future, our growth strategy will teecontinue to develop and sell new products toexisting customer base, sell new and existing
products to new customers (or expand relationshifisexisting customers), expand our sales of petalfrom our soft goods product line, and
expand in the United Kingdom and in other geograpégions (including Japan, Mexico and Australiapag others). In addition, there are a
number of potential acquisition candidates thatdde pursued in order to obtain new innovativedpiais, new product categories, new retalil
customers or new sales territories. There are appately 400 active juvenile product companieswbfch approximately 300 have less than
$10 million in sales. In addition, there are vasquoduct categories that we do not currently cdmpe including car seats, strollers, walkers,
and other categories. We may look to

11




Table of Contents

develop our own products in these categories engit to gain entrance into these categories thragghisitions.

As we continue to grow through internatiatives and any future acquisitions, we will inadditional expenses. Two of the key areas in
which those increased expenses will likely occersales and product development. To grow salesyillvikely hire additional sales persont
to service new geographic territories, focus exgstiesources on specific parts of the United Staitedket and retain product line specialists to
drive sales of new and existing products in speeifeas in which we believe we can readily increades. Product development expenses will
increase as we develop new products in existingnemdcategories.

If we were to acquire one or more compaagpart of our growth strategy, we would faceaasichallenges such as the integration of the
acquired companies' product lines, employees, miagkeequirements and information systems. Ongaifigstructure investment also may be
required to support realized growth, including exgiires with respect to upgraded and expandednrdton systems and enhancing our
management team.

Sales

Our revenues are primarily derived from shée of juvenile health, safety and wellness petgland are recognized upon transfer of titl
product to our customers. Our products are markéredigh several distribution channels includingiohretailers, specialty retailers and direct
to consumers.

A number of large, retail customers accauntajority of our net sales. The customer thaeggied more than 10% of net sales for the
ended December 31, 2009 was Toys R Us (52% of seicbales). Because of the concentration of ounbss with this customer and because
we have no long term contracts with this custoroer,success depends on our customers' willingilegsrchase and provide shelf space for
our products.

Over 90% of sales are currently made teorasers in North America, with the remaining salemprily made to customers in the United
Kingdom. Sales are made utilizing standard crediht of 30 to 60 days. We generally accept retonhsfor defective merchandise.

Cost of goods sold and other expenses

Our products are manufactured by thirdipsrtwith approximately 85-90% of the dollar vabfeproducts being manufactured in Asia and
the majority of the balance being manufacturedhn.S. Cost of goods sold primarily representsipases of finished products from these
third party manufacturers. The remainder of out obgioods sold includes duties on certain impoiteghs, freight-in from suppliers and
miscellaneous charges from contract manufactuansstantially all of our purchases are made in bl&us; therefore, most of this activity is
not subject to currency fluctuations. If our suppdiexperience increased raw materials, laborharatosts and pass along those cost increases
through higher prices for finished goods, our ajstales would increase, and to the extent we raabla to pass these price increases along to
our customers, our gross margins would decrease.

Selling, general and administrative expernsénarily consist of payroll, insurance, professil fees, royalties, freight out to customers,
product development costs, advertising and marfgetipenses (including co-op advertising allowaraesegotiated with certain customers)
and sales commissions. Several of these itemsufitetvith sales; some are based on sales to gartaustomers and others are based on sales
of particular products.

There are not significant variations ins®®l demand for our products. Sales to our retafomers are generally higher in the time fri
when retailers take initial shipments of new prdduc
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These orders usually incorporate enough produiiit gach store plus additional amounts to be kaghe customer's distribution center. The
timing of these initial shipments varies by customepending on when they finalize store layoutstierupcoming year, and whether there are
any mid-year product introductions.

Summary of critical accounting policies and estimags

This summary of our critical accountingipis is presented to assist in understanding onsalidated financial statements. The
consolidated financial statements and notes areseptations of our management, which is respangibltheir integrity and objectivity. The
accounting policies conform to accounting princgpdeenerally accepted in the United States of Araegitd have been consistently applied in
the preparation of the consolidated financial stegets.

We make certain estimates and assumpti@isaffect the reported amounts of assets anditiabiand the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses. The accounting policies describethverie those we consider critical in preparingfowancial statements. Some of these
policies include significant estimates made by ng@naent using information available at the timedbémates were made. However, these
estimates could change materially if different mfi@tion or assumptions were used.

Revenue recognitic

We record revenue when all of the followoagur: persuasive evidence of an arrangementsexigiduct delivery has occurred, the sales
price to the customer is fixed or determinable apitectability is reasonably assured. Sales arerdsxl net of provisions for returns and
allowances, product placement fees, cash discamtsnarkdowns. We base our estimates for discoreitans and allowances on negotiated
customer terms and historical experience. Thes@a&t®s are subject to variability, as actual deidasttaken by customers may be different
from the estimates recorded.

Sales incentives or other consideratiorgilly us to customers that are considered adjustroéthe selling price of its products, such as
allowances and product placement fees, are refledeeductions of revenue. Sales incentives dra gbnsideration that represent costs
incurred by us for assets or services received aadhe appearance of our products in a custonmeditsal circular ad, are reflected as selling
and marketing expenses in the accompanying statsroéimcome.

Trade receivables

We carry our trade receivables at netzable value. On a periodic basis, we evaluateradetreceivables and establish an allowance for
doubtful accounts based on a history of past batl @gense, collections and current credit conatitid’he allowance is adjusted based on
actual write-offs that occur. We have a credit lasige policy to protect against potential lossetougtated amounts from certain customers.

We do not accrue interest on trade recédgald\ receivable is considered past due if paymbate not been received within the credit
terms on the account, typically 60 days for mostamers.

We will turn an account over for collectiaround 120 days past due. Accounts are considereallectible if no payments are received
to 90 days after they have been turned over fdecibn.

Inventory Valuatior

Inventory is comprised of finished goodsd @&stated at the lower of cost, inclusive ofdtgiand duty, or market (net realizable value)
using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Our rghousing costs are charged to expense as inclmkeshtory write-downs are recorded for
damaged, obsolete or slow-moving inventory. Manag@mses estimates to record write-downs baset$ oaview of
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inventory by product category, including lengthtiofe on hand and estimates of future orders foh @aeduct. Changes in consumer
preferences, as well as demand for products, custbaying patterns and inventory management coofsct the inventory valuation.

Impairment of lon-lived assets, goodwill and other intangible assets

Long-lived assets have been reviewed f@aimment based on accounting guidance which regjtira an impairment loss be recognized
whenever the carrying value of an asset exceedsutineof the undiscounted cash flows expected wtr'sm the use and eventful disposition
of that asset, excluding future interest costsetitédy would recognize as an expense when incu@eddwill and other intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives are not amortized, fagher tested at least annually for impairment. @anagement reviews for indicators that
might suggest an impairment loss could exist. Tigsdr impairment requires estimates of expecteth gmws to be generated from the use of
the assets. Various uncertainties, including chamgeonsumer preference, deterioration in thetipalienvironment, continued adverse
conditions in the capital markets or changes iregareconomic conditions, could impact the expectezh flows to be generated by an asset or
group of assets. Intangible assets that have firsigdul lives are amortized over their useful lives

Allowance for doubtful account

The allowance for doubtful accounts repnésadjustments to customer trade accounts redeif@bamounts deemed uncollectible. The
allowance for doubtful accounts reduces gross tradeivables to their estimated net realizableevaline allowance is based on our assess
of the business environment, customers' finandatition, historical trends, customer payment peast receivable aging and customer
disputes. We will continue to proactively review dredit risks and adjust its customer terms tecethe current environment.

Income taxe

Effective January 1, 2007, we adopted tloeipions of new accounting guidance which providetailed guidance for the financial
statement recognition, measurement and disclosureaertain tax positions recognized in the finahstatements. Tax positions must meet a
"more-likely-than-not" recognition threshold at tékective date to be recognized upon adoptioniarsdibsequent periods. Upon adoption, we
had no unrecognized tax benefits.

Deferred income tax assets are adjusteiatuation allowance, if necessary, to recognizeré tax benefits only to the extent, based on
available evidence; it is "more-likely-than-not'ckubenefits will be realized. We recognize inteegsl penalties, if any, related to uncertain tax
positions in selling, general and administrativpenses.

The tax years 2005 through 2008 remain @pexxamination by the major taxing jurisdictionsathich we operate. We expect no material
changes to unrecognized tax positions within the tveelve months.
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Results of Operations

Summer Infant, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income
For the Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

The numbers in the table below are in thads of U.S. dollars; the text below the tablenisshole numbers.

Year ended December 31, 20C Year Ended December 31, 200
Net sales $ 153,48: 100.(%$ 132,36¢ 100.(%
Cost of goods sol 98,23: 64.(% 85,51« 64.6%
Gross Profit 55,24¢ 36.(% 46,85¢ 35.4%
SG&A expenses(c 40,52( 26.2% 34,03¢ 25.71%
Adjusted EBITDA(b) 14,72¢ 9.€% 12,81¢ 9.7%

Net Income $ 5,65¢ 3.7%$%$ 4,15¢ 3.1%

€)) Excluding depreciation, amortization, deal-reldfees, and non-cash stock option expense.

(b) See no-GAAP discussion below regarding the computatioAdiusted EBITDA.
Year ended December 31, 2009 compared with yeagdebécember 31, 2008

Net sales increased 16% from $132,369,0@0a year ended December 31, 2008 to $153,481g0@0e year ended December 31, 2009.
This increase was primarily attributable to incezhdistribution of existing products throughout customer base, introduction of new
products, acquisitions, and international growth.

Gross profit increased 18% from $46,855,fa@@he year ended December 31, 2008 to $55,208@the year ended December 31, 2!
This increase was primarily attributable to the li&Zsease in net sales. Gross profit percentageased to 36.0% of sales for the year ended
December 31, 2009 from 35.4% in the prior year tdusost savings negotiated by the Company durir920

Selling, general and administrative expsr{see note (a) above) increased from $34,039@00é year ended December 31, 2009 to
$40,520,000 for the year ended December 31, 200i9.ificrease was primarily attributable to increbgariable costs such as op-advertisin
allowances as a result of the significant increasales. In addition, there were increased experedi in product development, payroll,
professional fees, and warehouse operations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We generally fund our operations and wagldapital needs through cash generated from opasagéind borrowings under our credit
facility.

Our sales have increased significantly dlverpast several years. This sales growth ha®ladubstantial increase in working capital
requirements, specifically accounts receivableiamentory. The typical cash flow cycle is as folkw

. Inventory is purchased to meet expected demandapbagety stock. Because the majority of our vesidoe based in Asi
inventory takes from four to six weeks to arrivenfr Asia to the various distribution points we maintin the US, Canada and
the UK. Payment terms for these vendors are apmabely 30- 60 days from the date the product shgra Asia, therefore we
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are generally paying for the product a short tirfterat is physically received in the US. The inased sales we have experier
result in increased levels of inventory, and themefan increase in the amount of cash requiredrtd bur inventory level.

. Sales to customers generally have payment terr@8 days. The increased sales have resulted incegeise in the level
accounts receivable, and therefore have increhasednmount of cash required to fund working capital.

We have traditionally been able to fund imereased working capital through lines of credih banks.

The majority of capital expenditures aretfls related to new product introductions. Weeree indications from retailers generally
around the middle of each year as to what prodhetsetailer will be taking into its product linerfthe upcoming year. Based on these
indications, we will then acquire the tools reqdite build the products. In most cases the paynfenthe tools are spread out over a three to
four month period.

For the year ended December 31, 2009,a%#t provided by operating activities totaled $18,680. This was due to the positive net
income generated during the year, plus non-castgebaln addition, we had a net decrease in workapital requirements due to improved
inventory controls and longer payment terms withggiers.

Net cash used in investing activities wagreximately $5,837,000 which primarily relatestpital expenditures and acquisitions.

Net cash used in financing activities wpgraximately $5,731,000 which relates to repaymehemounts due on our debt facilities; the
positive cash flow from operating activities gerntedsthe debt reduction.

Based primarily on the above factors, teeaash decrease for the year ended December 39 w285 approximately $56,000, resulting in
a cash balance of approximately $932,000 at DeceB1he2009.

We believe that our cash on hand and culranking facilities are sufficient to fund its bagquirements for at least the next 12 months.
However, unforeseen circumstances, such as sofiméss retail industry or deterioration in the mess of a significant customer, could create
a situation where Summer cannot access all ofithagadle lines of credit due to not having suffiti@ssets or EBITDA. In addition, there is
assurance that Summer will meet all of its bankeoawts in the future, or that its lender will grauativers if there are covenant violations.

Our strategy for funding its business gdimgvard is a combination of increased profitabijliind if necessary, negotiation of increased
borrowing lines as required with traditional lergler

On April 10, 2008, we entered into two #weear secured credit facilities (the "Loan Agreatfjewith Bank of America, N.A., as
Administrative Agent, and each of the financiatigions that is a signatory to the Loan Agreemdiie Loan Agreement provides for a
$36,000,000 working capital revolving credit fagiland a $10,000,000 non-restoring acquisitionitfadility. The credit facilities mature on
June 30, 2011.

Summer and its subsidiaries, Summer InfdA), Inc., Summer Infant Europe Limited, Summefiaht Asia Limited and Summer Infant
Canada, Limited are the borrowers under the Loareément. These credit facilities replaced Sumnpeids line of credit and are being used
principally to fund growth opportunities and for tking capital purposes.

Our ability to borrow under the Loan Agresrhis subject to its ongoing compliance with a banof financial and other covenants,
including the following (i) that Summer and its sidiaries maintain a net worth of $50,000,000 phessum of 50% of net income earned in
each fiscal year,
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(i) that Summer and its subsidiaries maintainteraf total funded debt to EBITDA of not greatbah 3.50:1.00, and (jii) that Summer and its
subsidiaries maintain a ratio of operating castvfio debt service of not less than 1.25:1.00. Furtiore, if the ratio of total funded debt to
EBITDA is greater than 3.25:1.00 for any fiscal yehe aggregate amount that may be borrowed uhddroan Agreement will be determin
by reference to a borrowing base.

These credit facilities bear interest #bating rate based on a spread over LIBOR ran§img 150 basis points to 200 basis points,
depending upon the ratio of total funded debt téTEB\. We have also entered into various interesip@greements which fixes the interest
rates on a portion of the outstanding debt. Asedd&nber 31, 2009, the rate on these credit fasldaveraged 4.60%. In addition, these credit
facilities have an unused line fee based on theeshamount of the credit facilities equal to 25dpasints.

The Loan Agreement also contains custoraaents of default, including a cross default priowvisand a change of control provision. In
event of a default, all of the obligations of then@pany and its subsidiaries under the Loan Agreémesy be declared immediately due and
payable. For certain events of default relatingnémlvency and receivership, all outstanding oliliges become due and payable.

As of December 31, 2009, we had $33,461di@6tanding of the total committed amount of $86,000.
We were in compliance with all covenant®fiBecember 31, 2009.
The following table summarizes our sigrafit contractual commitments at December 31, 2009:

Payment Due by Period

2013 and
Contractual Obligations Total 2010 2011 2012 beyond
(In Thousands)
Line of credit/acquisition facilit $ 3346 $ 1,897 $ 3156¢ $
Estimated future interest payments on lin
credit 2,38 1,58¢ 794
Advances against international receivat 472 472
Operating lease 3,23: 2,11¢ 843 24z 3 30
Capital leases and other liabiliti 2,91¢ 70€ 56¢ 43¢ 1,20z
Total contractual cash obligatio $ 42,46 $ 6,782 $ 33,77C $ 68C $ 1,23

Estimated future interest payments on imér 6f credit were based upon the interest rateffect at December 31, 2009.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We did not have any off-balance sheet ggarents during either of the years ended Decenthet(®9 and 2008.
Non-GAAP Discussion

In addition to our reported results, whick prepared in accordance with generally accegtedunting principles ("GAAP"), we also
disclose non-GAAP measures of our performance. #dfjuEBITDA, as defined below, is an important sepgental financial measure of our
performance that is not required by, or presemeatcordance with, GAAP. As used herein, "AdjugE8ITDA" represents net income (loss)
before income taxes, interest expense, deal-retatpenses, depreciation and amortization, and ash-stock option expense. We believe that
the presentation of Adjusted EBITDA provides uséfifibrmation regarding our results of operationséese it assists in analyzing and
benchmarking the performance and value of our legsinWe believe that Adjusted EBITDA is
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useful to stockholders as a measure of comparafieeating performance, as it is less susceptiblatiances in actual performance resulting
from depreciation and amortization and more reflecdf changes in pricing decisions, cost contasld other factors that affect operating
performance.

Adjusted EBITDA also is used by our managetfor multiple purposes, including:

. to calculate and support various coverage ratitis @ur lenders;

. to allow lenders to calculate total proceeds theydlling to loan to us based on our relative sggth compared to oth
competitors; and

. to more accurately compare our operating performdirmen period to period and company to companylioyieating difference
caused by variations in capital structures (whiflbca relative interest expense), tax positions ambrtization of intangibles.

Although we use Adjusted EBITDA as a fini@heneasure to assess the performance of our lassitieere are material limitations to using
a measure such as Adjusted EBITDA, including tlificdity associated with using it as the sole measa compare the results of one comg
to another and the inability to analyze significaems that directly affect a company's net incqtoss) or operating income because it does
include certain material costs, such as interedttaxes, necessary to operate its business. Iti@udiur calculation of Adjusted EBITDA may
not be consistent with similarly titted measurestifer companies and should be viewed in conjunatith measures that are computed in
accordance with GAAP. Our management compensateisdse limitations in considering Adjusted EBITIrAconjunction with its analysis
other GAAP financial measures, such as net income.

The following table presents a reconcitintof Adjusted EBITDA to net income, its most ditgcomparable GAAP financial measure,
a historical basis, for the periods presented:

Reconciliation of Income before interest to unaudid Adjusted EBITDA

Year Ended
December 31,
2009 2008

(In Thousands)
Income before intere: $ 957 $ 9,33¢
Plus: depreciation and amortizati 4,15 2,90z
Plus: litigation and de-related expense 21k 214
Plus: nol-cash stock option expen 78t 36C
Adjusted EBITDA, as define $ 14,72¢ $ 12,81¢

The increase in Adjusted EBITDA for the fpgsar has been primarily the result of the salesgiase in 2009. Sales increased from
$132,369,000 in 2008 to $153,481,000 in 2009.

For the years ended December 31, 2009 @08 2Adjusted EBITDA", as defined, includes the itidd of certain deal-related expenses
that we believe to be nonrecurring.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued newandd regarding fair value measurements. The negdagoe defined fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value in generally gqoted accounting principles and expands disclosabrest fair value measurements. The
guidance applies under other accounting pronouncentieat require or permit fair value measuremantsaccordingly, does not require any
new fair value measurements. The guidance wastiekefor fiscal years beginning after November 2807. The Company adopted this
guidance for its financial assets and liabilitifeaive January 1, 2008. The adoption did not heweaterial impact on our financial stateme
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In December 2007, the FASB issued a nemdsita which establishes principles and requiremientsow the acquirer of a business
recognizes and measures in its financial statentbatslentifiable assets acquired, the liabilisesumed, and any naontrolling interest in th
acquired company. The new standard also providieswgcoe for recognizing and measuring the goodwijuéred in the business combination
and determines what information to disclose to &nabers of the financial statements to evaluaetiiure and financial effects of the busi
combination. The provisions of the new standardeffiective for financial statements issued fordispears beginning after December 15, 2!
We adopted this standard, as applicable, on Jady&§09. The adoption did not have a material chpa our financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued a nemdsta which establishes accounting and reportiaigdstrds for the nooentrolling interest il
a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a siiagy. In addition, the new standard also incluelgsanded disclosure requirements regarding
interests of the parent and its non-controllingiiest. The provisions of the new standard are @ffeor financial statements issued for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2008. We addptedtandard, as applicable, on January 1, ZD@® adoption did not have a mate
impact on our financial statements.

In April 2008, the FASB issued new guidamd¢gch amends the factors that should be considerddveloping renewal or extension
assumptions used to determine the useful lifereCagnized intangible asset. The intent of thetjwosis to improve the consistency between
the useful life of a recognized intangible asset #ue period of expected cash flows used to medkaertair value of the asset. The new
guidance is effective for fiscal years beginninggaDecember 15, 2008 and is effective beginnimyidey 1, 2009. Adoption did not have a
material impact on its consolidated results of afiens and financial condition.

The FASB Accounting Standards CodificatioiCbdification) is the source of authoritative agoting principles recognized by the FA
to be applied by nongovernmental entities in threppration of financial statements in conformityw@GAAP. Rules and interpretive release:
the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) wmdiéority of federal securities laws are also sesiaf authoritative GAAP for SEC
registrants. The adoption of the codification hadmpact on our financial position, results of ggt@ms or cash flows.

In February 2010, the FASB issued an amemdito its previously issued guidance regardingsgbent events. This amendment rem
the requirement for SEC filers to disclose the dlateugh which subsequent events have been evdlbgtthe Company. The amendment was
effective immediately for all financial statemegtt to be issued. The Company adopted this amentdm€&ebruary 2010 with no material
impact to the consolidated financial statements.

Management does not believe that any otreantly issued, but not yet effective, accounstemdards if currently adopted would have a
material effect on the accompanying financial stegets.

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Not applicable.
Iltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary &a

The financial statements required by tteémiare attached to this Annual Report on Form Ife#inning on Page F-1.
Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accotents on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.
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Item 9A(T) Controls and Procedures
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Proceski

As required by Rule 13a-15 under the SéiesrExchange Act of 1934, as of the end of thégdesovered by this Annual report, we
carried out an evaluation, under the supervisiahwith the participation of our Chief Executive @#r and our Chief Financial Officer, of the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and pracesias of December 31, 2009. Our principal exeewtfficer and principal financial officer
have concluded, based on their evaluation, thaef #e end of the period covered by this report,disclosure controls and procedures were
effective as of December 31, 2009. The Companyahdeficiency as a result of not recording the ¥alue of its swap agreements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipless As of December 31, 2009, management belithissleficiency has been corrected.

(b) Management's Report on Internal Control oWerancial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsiblestablishing and maintaining adequate internatrobover financial reporting. As defined
in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act, inteomaitrol over financial reporting is a process desijby, or under the supervision of , a
company's principal executive and principal finahcifficers and effected by a company's board dadors, management and other personnel,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding théiléliaof financial reporting and the preparatiohfimancial statements for external purpose
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples: It includes those policies and proceduras th

1) Pertain to the maintenance of rectindsin reasonable detail accurately and fairfiect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of a company;

2) Provide reasonable assurance thaddrdions are recorded as necessary to permitratepaof financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples; and that receipts and expenditures of a emyppre being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management amtbdlard of directors of the company; and

3) Provide reasonable assurance regaptevention or timely detection of unauthorizedusition, use or deposition of a
company's assets that could have a material affeits financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations, inédrontrol over financial reporting may not preventletect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

The Company's management has used theaetablished in "Internal Control—IntegratedrReavork” issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commisgio®SO") to evaluate the effectiveness of the Canyfs internal control over financial
reporting. Management has selected the COSO frankefaits evaluation as it is a control framewaoecognized by the SEC and the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board, that is fremfibias, permits reasonably consistent qualitative quantitative measurement of the
Company's internal controls, is sufficiently contpleo that relevant controls are not omitted, amelievant to an evaluation of internal cont
over financial reporting.

Management of the Company conducted aruatiah of the effectiveness, as of December 319260the Company's internal control
over financial reporting based on the Internal @artIntegrated Framework issued by the CommitteSmdnsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (the "COSO Framework™). Basedsevaluation under the COSO Framework,
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management has concluded that the Company's iht@ntol over financial reporting was effectivea<December 31, 2009.
Identification of a Material Weakne

A material weakness is a significant defidy, or a combination of significant deficienciget results in more than a remote likelihood
that a material misstatement of the annual orimténancial statements will not be prevented diedted.

In November 2009, it was determined that@mpany's method for calculating interest ofiri@ncing agreements, specifically the
interest rate swaps and their fair value, werecootect as further described under (a) above, madbmpany’'s management has elected to
restate the financial statements for 2008.

Remediation of a Material Weakne

Our management conducted an internal revieite accounting for interest rate swap transm&ito ensure its accounting for the interest
rate swaps are in accordance with Generally Acdefaiteounting Principles. We believe that contrais ia place at this time to ensure proper
accounting of interest rate swaps.

The annual report does not include an tatties report of our registered public accountiimpnfregarding internal control over financial
reporting. Our management's report was not subjegttestation by our registered public accountimg pursuant to temporary rules of the
Securities and Exchange Commission that permib gsdvide only our management's report in this ahneport.

(c) Changes in Internal Control Over Financialgoeting

Other than the matter discussed aboveg tlvas no change in our internal control over fimaneporting that occurred during the quarter
ended December 31, 2009 that has materially affecteis reasonably likely to materially affectranternal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

Not applicable.

PART Il
Iltem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corprate Governance

The information required by this Item wik contained in our definitive Proxy Statementediked with the SEC in connection with our
2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "2010 RrB6tatement") under the captions "Election of Dives," "Board of Directors Meetings
and Committees of the Board," "Executive Officeagtl "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reportimpliance™” and is incorporated her
by reference.

We have adopted a Code of Ethics that eppdi all our directors, officers and employees Tlode of Ethics is publicly available on our
website atwww.summerinfant.com . Amendments to the Code of Ethics and any graatwéiver from a provision of the Code of Ethics
requiring disclosure under applicable SEC and Nasdkes will be disclosed on our website.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item wik incorporated by reference from the informatiadar the caption "Executive Compensation"
contained in our 2010 Proxy Statement.
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficibfOwners and Management and Related Stockholder Mégrs

The information required by this item Wik incorporated by reference from the informatioder the caption "Ownership of Summer
Infant, Inc. Common Stock" contained in our 2016XyrStatement.

Equity Compensation Plan Informati

The following table summarizes share infation, as of December 31, 2009, for our equity censation plans, including the 2006
Performance Equity Plan.

Number of
Common Shares to Be
Issued Upon Exercise Weighted Average
of Outstanding Exercise Price of
Plan Category Option Grants Qutstanding Grants

Stock option plans

approved by

stockholder: 2,014,600 $ 3.7C
Equity compensation

plans not approved

by stockholder: — —

Total 2,014,600 $ 3.7C

In addition, during 2009 349,000 restricsbdres were granted to employees and board men8e280 shares vested in 2009 and were
issued, 19,500 shares were cancelled, and 242i288sshave not yet vested.

ltem 13. Certain Relationships, Related Transa@ins and Director Independence

The information required by this item wikk incorporated by reference from the informatioder the caption "Certain Relationships and
Related Transactions" contained in our 2010 Prdayegent.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item wakk incorporated by reference from the informatioder the captions "Audit Fees", "Audit-
Related Fees," "Tax Fees," "All Other Fees" ane-Rpproval Policies and Procedures"” contained m2®10 Proxy Statement.

PART IV
Iltem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(a) (1) Financial Statemen

The list of consolidated financial statements aotds required by this Item 15 (a) (1) is set fantkhe "Index to Financial Statements"
on page F-1 of this Annual Report.

(@ (2) Financial Statement Schedu
All schedules have been omitted because the rehjinfermation is included in the financial statertseor notes thereto.
(@)  (3) Exhibits
The list of exhibits required by this Item 15 (8) (s set forth in the "Index to Exhibits" begingion page 25 of this Annual Report.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Summer Infant, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying cons@itbtlance sheet of Summer Infant, Inc. and Swrgdias of December 31, 2009, and the
related consolidated statements of income, stodensl equity and cash flows for the year then en@lbdse financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Oyvaesibility is to express an opinion on these feiahstatements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance wWithdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Qger8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hawewere we engaged to perform, an audit of itsrivdl control over financial reporting.

Our audit included consideration of internal col#traver financial reporting as a basis for desigrandit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsaimopinion on the effectiveness of the Companrdrols over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audifudes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgdghe amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes agsgdbe accounting principles used and signifiesiimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement preg@naWe believe that our audit provides a reastmbasis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated finanattements referred to above present fairly, imallerial respects, the financial position of
Summer Infant, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of Decer@beR009, and the results of their operationsthait cash flows for the year then endec
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounfinigciples.

/s/ Caturano and Company, P

Boston, Massachusetts
March 10, 201(
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Summer Infant, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying cons@itbtlance sheet of Summer Infant, Inc. and Swrgdias of December 31, 2008, and the
related consolidated statements of income, stodensl equity and cash flows for the year then en@lbdse financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Oyvaesibility is to express an opinion on these feiahstatements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance wWithdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Qger8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our auditigges a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated finanattements referred to above present fairly, imallerial respects, the financial position of
Summer Infant, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of Decer@beP008, and the results of their operationsthait cash flows for the year then ended in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounfingciples.

/sl MCGLADREY & PULLEN, LLP

New York, New York
March 24, 2009, except for Note 2, for which théeda January 4, 201
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Summer Infant, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets
Note that all dollar amounts presentechatible below are in thousands of U.S. dollarsgpikshare amounts and par value per share.

December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSET¢
Cash and cash equivale $ 93z $ 98¢
Trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtfloamts o
$107 and $335 at December 31, 2009 and 2008,

respectively 32,52( 29,35¢
Inventory, ne 32,01: 30,88:
Prepaids and other current as: 2,49t 1,49t
Deferred tax asse 1,071 602
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 69,03( 63,32¢
Property and equipment, r 11,48¢ 11,21:
Goodwill 45,49¢ 40,45
Other intangible assets, r 15,70¢ 15,13(
Other asset 237 41€
TOTAL ASSETS $ 141,95! $ 130,53!

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Line of credit and current portion of lo-term debt 2,66 1,65¢
Accounts payable and accrued expel 29,96¢ 23,04
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 32,62¢ 24,69¢
Long-term debt, less current porti 31,78( 42,27
Other liabilities 6,95 1,15(
Deferred tax liabilitie: 1,607 94¢€
TOTAL LIABILITIES 72,97: 69,07

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common Stock $.0001 par value, issued and outstgndi
15,356,727 and 15,055,802 at December 31, 2009 a

2008, respectivel 1 1
Additional paic-in capital 55,34 54,09¢
Retained earning 13,90: 8,24¢
Accumulated other comprehensive i (26€) (882)

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 68,98( 61,46:

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY  § 141,95 $ 130,53!

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Summer Infant, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income

Note that all dollar amounts presentechantiible and the notes to the table below arednstéinds of U.S. dollars, except share and per
share amounts.

For the year ended
December 31, 200! December 31, 200:

Net revenue $ 153,48: $ 132,36
Cost of goods sol 98,23: 85,51«
Gross profi 55,24¢ 46,85¢
Selling, general and administrative expense 41,52( 34,61:
Depreciation and amortizatic 4,15¢ 2,90:

Net operating incom 9,57: 9,33¢
Interest expense, n (1,499¢) (3,209

Income before provision for income tay 8,07t 6,13(
Provision for income taxe 2,421 1,97¢

Net income $ 5,65¢ $ 4,15¢
Net income per share ba $ 037 $ 0.2¢
Weighted average shares outstanding k 15,238,03 14,734,29
Net income per share diluti $ 0.3¢ $ 0.2¢
Weighted average shares outstanding dil 15,735,57 14,734,29

€) Includes non-cash stock-based compensation expéi$§85 and $360 for the years ended December(B, 2nd
December 31, 2008, respectively. Also includes-delated fees of $215 and $214 for the years endsember 31, 20(
and 2008, respectivel

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Summer Infant, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Note that all dollar amounts presentechadttached table are in thousands of U.S. dollars.

For the year ended
December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 5,65 $ 4,15¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashl irse

operating activities

Change in value of interest rate swap agreen (329) 1,15C
Depreciation and amortizatic 4,15¢ 2,90:
Stoclk-based compensatic 78t 36C
Deferred income taxe 192 43€
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effettcquisitions
Increase in accounts receiva (2,527) (4,449
(Increase) decrease in inventt 62€ (6,73
Decrease (increase) in prepaids and other curssets (955) 33€
Increase in other ass¢ 17¢ (200)
Increase in accounts payable and accrued exp 3,87z 2,027
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi 11,65¢ (16)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisitions of property and equipme (3,867) (3,869)
Acquisitions of other intangible assi (14¢€) (1,682
Acquisitions, net of cash acquir (1,830 (15,959
Net cash used in investing activiti (5,837 (21,509
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net borrowings (repayments) of de (9,789 21,71
Proceeds received from s-leaseback of proper 4,05: —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi (5,73)) 21,71«
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casaénts (14¢€) (97¢)
Net decrease in cash and cash equiva (56) (78%)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 98¢ 1,771
Cash and cash equivalents at end of $ 93z $ 98¢

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati

Cash paid during the year for inter $ 1,397 $ 1,90¢
Cash paid during the year for income ta $ 2,02t % 1,42¢
Non cash investing/financing activitie
Issuance of common stock in conjunction with the

acquisitions (see note $ 46z $ 4,657
Capital lease obligations incurr $ 407 $ 38C

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Summer Infant, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity

For the Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

Note that all dollar amounts presentechndttached table are in thousands of U.S. dollars.

Additional Accumulated Total
Paid in Retained Comprehensive Comprehensive Stockholders
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Income Equity

Commons Stock

Balance at

December 3.

2007 13,907,91 $ 1 $ 49,07¢ $ 4,09¢ 96 $ 53,27(
Acquisition of

Basic

Comfort, In 450,00( 1,77¢ 1,77¢
Acquisition of

Kiddopotan 697,89( 2,87¢ 2,87¢
Stock based

compensati 36C 36C
Net income fa

the yeal 4,15¢ $ 4,15¢
Foreign

currency

translation

adjustmen $ (97¢) (979)
Total

comprehen:

income $ 3,17¢ 3,17¢
Balance at

December 3

2008

(restated) 15,055,80 $ 1 $ 54,09t $ 8,24¢ $ (882) $ 61,46
Acquisition of

Butterfly

Living 213,67! 462 462
Issuance of

common

stock upon

vesting of

restricted

shares 87,25(
Stoclk-basec

compensati 78t 78t

Net income fo
the yeat 5,65¢ 5,654
Foreign
currency
translation
adjustmen 61¢€ 61€
Total
comprehen:
income $ 6,27( 6,27(
Balance at
December 3.
2009 15,356,72 $ 1 $ 55,34: $13,90: $ (26€) $ 68,98(

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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SUMMER INFANT, INC. AND SUBSIDIAIRES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Acquisition of Summer Infant, Inc. by KBL Healthredcquisition Corp. |

On March 6, 2007, under an Agreement aad$Pbf Reorganization, dated as of September B @@@quisition Agreement"), KBL
Healthcare Acquisition Corp. Il ("KBL"), and its why owned subsidiary, Sl Acquisition Corp. ("Adgition Sub"), consummated a
transaction by which (i) Summer Infant, Inc. ("§Was merged with and into Acquisition Sub anddii)of the outstanding capital stock of
each of Summer Infant Europe, Limited ("SIE") andv®ner Infant Asia, Ltd. ("SIA" and, collectively,ith SIl and SIE, the "Targets") was
acquired directly by KBL. As used in this Repohig term "Summer” includes each of the Targets. geslun this Report, the term "Company"
means the registrant on a post-acquisition basis.

Effective upon closing, the Company chanigedame to Summer Infant, Inc. and Sll changedédme to Summer Infant (USA), Inc.
Thus, the Company is now a holding company calletii8er Infant, Inc. operating through its wholly-adhsubsidiaries, Summer Infant
(USA), Inc., Summer Infant Europe, Limited, and Soen Infant Asia, Ltd.

At the closing of the acquisition, the Suemrstockholders received from the Company an aggesgf $20,000,000 cash and 3,916,667
shares of Company common stock ("Transaction SHares

On November 7, 2008, Summer Infant (USAg, kreated a wholly-owned subsidiary called Sumimiant Canada, Ltd. ("SIC").
Nature of Operations and Basis of Presentation Bridciples of Consolidatiol

It is the Company's policy to prepare iitghcial statements on the accrual basis of acowyirt conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Ameifite consolidated financial statements includeattemunts of its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

All significant intercompany accounts arghisactions have been eliminated in the consotidati
Revenue Recognitic

The Company records revenue when all ofdhewing occur: persuasive evidence of an arramget exists, product delivery has
occurred, the sales price to the customer is fotedieterminable, and collectability is reasonalsiyuaed. Sales are recorded net of provisions
for returns and allowances, customer discountsodmelr sales related discounts. The Company btsestimates for discounts, returns and
allowances on negotiated customer terms and hisiakperience. Customers do not have the rigtgtton products unless the products are
defective. The Company records a reduction of daleastimated future defective product deductibased on historical experience.

Sales incentives or other consideratiomigibty the Company to customers that are considetipdtments of the selling price of its
products, such as allowances and product placefeesitare reflected as reductions of revenue. Salestives and other consideration that
represent costs incurred by the Company for assetsrvices received, such as the appearance Gfdimpany's products in a customer's
national circular ad, are reflected as selling anadketing expenses in the accompanying stateméirisame.
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SUMMER INFANT, INC. AND SUBSIDIAIRES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)
Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash fleash and cash equivalents include money markeuats and investments with an original
maturity of three months or less. At times, the @any possesses cash balances in excess of fedaglhgd limits.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are reported at thestantling unpaid principal balances reduced by lawahce for doubtful accounts. The Company
estimates doubtful accounts based on historicadedds, factors related to specific customersitghd pay and current economic trends. The
Company writes off accounts receivable againsatlmevance when a balance is determined to be wtdile.

Inventory

Inventory is comprised of finished goods @&stated at the lower of cost using the firstfimst-out (FIFO) method, or market (net
realizable value). The Company regularly revievesvsinoving and excess inventories, and writes downritor@es to net realizable value if t
ultimate expected proceeds from the disposals eésxinventory are less than the carrying cogiefterchandise.

Property and Equipmet

Property and equipment are recorded at ¢h&t Company owns the molds used in the produdidts products by third party
manufacturers. Capitalized mold costs include costsrred for the pre-production design and develept of the molds.

Depreciation is provided over the estimatseiful lives of the respective assets using egtraight-line or accelerated methods.
Impairment of Lon-Lived Assets

The Company reviews lotiged assets for impairment whenever events or gésiin circumstances indicate that the carryinguarhof a
long-lived asset may not be recoverable. An assebiisidered to be impaired when its carrying amexoeeds the sum of the undiscounted
future net cash flows expected to result from the of the asset and its eventual disposition. Lvagh assets include property and equipment.
The amount of impairment loss, if any, is charggdhe Company to current operations. For eacheftars ended December 31, 2009 and
2008, no such impairment existed.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The Company accounts for Goodwill and Oth&ngible Assets in accordance with accountingance that requires that goodwill and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful liwedonger be subject to amortization and be testdelast annually for impairment.
Management evaluates the remaining useful lifendhtangible asset that is not being amortized eaphrting period to determine whether
events and circumstances continue to support afiinigk useful life. If an intangible asset thahist being amortized is subsequently
determined to have a finite useful life, it is atimad prospectively over its estimated remainingfulslife. For the years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008, the Company has determined thaictoisipairment existed.
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SUMMER INFANT, INC. AND SUBSIDIAIRES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

Goodwill is required to be assigned to réipg units for purposes of impairment testingthié carrying value of a reporting unit exceed
estimated fair value, goodwill is written down te implied fair value. For the years ended DecerBtie2009 and 2008, the Company has
determined that such impairment existed.

Basic Comfort Acquisitio

On March 31, 2008, through Summer (USA8, @ompany acquired substantially all of the asseBasic Comfort, Inc. ("Basic"), a
leading manufacturer and supplier of infant coméortl safety products, including infant sleep posérs, infant head supports and portable
changing pads. The acquisition price was approxmat4,700,000 in cash and 450,000 shares of wirrgd Summer common stock (which
were valued at $1,777,500 using the March 31, 20@8ing price of $3.95). The cash portion of thechase price was funded through
borrowings under the Company's credit facility. @on of the common stock issued at closing wgmdiged into escrow to secure the post-
closing indemnification obligations of the Basioakholders. The owners of Basic received an aduitipayment of $360,000 based on the
achievement of certain EBITDA targets for the yeaded March 31, 2009; this payment was made inatgr2®10, and the amount is included
in current liabilities at December 31, 2009 and basn capitalized as goodwill.

The following table summarizes the fairued of the assets acquired and liabilities asswah#te date of acquisition of Basic by Summer:

(In Thousands)
Trade receivable $ 1,38«
Inventory 1,55¢
Other Current Asse 121
Property and equipme 152
Other Intangible Asse 614
Goodwiill 4,76¢
Deferred tax benefit 20C
Total assets require 8,79¢
Total liabilities assume 1,85¢
Net assets acquire $ 6,94¢

Kiddopotamus Acquisitio

On April 18, 2008, the Company, through $en USA, entered into an Agreement and Plan of Elefthe "Merger Agreement"), among
Summer USA, Kiddo Acquisition Co., Inc., a whollyvoed subsidiary of Summer USA ("Merger Sub"), Kiddamus & Company
("Kiddopotamus"), J. Chris Snedeker, Kristen PeteiSnedeker and Thomas K. Manning, under whiclCirapany acquired Kiddopotamus
leading manufacturer and supplier of infant nurstrgwel and feeding accessories. Pursuant tcetinestof the Merger Agreement, on April 18,
2008, Merger Sub merged with and into Kiddopotamaith Kiddopotamus continuing as the surviving gnfthe "Merger"). As a result of the
merger, Kiddopotamus became a wholly-owned subygidibthe Company.
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SUMMER INFANT, INC. AND SUBSIDIAIRES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

Under the Merger Agreement, the total pasehprice paid by the Company to the holders ofl§@btamus common and preferred stock,
plus the payment of various closing expenses, Wass$0,000. Of the total purchase price, approxéiye9,600,000 was paid in cash, and
approximately $2,900,000 was paid by the issuah€&®1®,890 unregistered shares of the Company's amstock at $4.126 per share, which
represented the ten day trading average endinigeotrdding day two business days prior to the opsif the merger. Each holder of
Kiddopotamus common and preferred stock (other thh&hris Snedeker and Kristen Peterson SnedéiestRrincipal Stockholders")) elected
to receive their allocation of the total net pusda@rice in cash. As required by the Merger Agregntbe Principal Stockholders received one
half of their allocation of the total net purchgs&e in common stock of the Company and one Imatgish.

The Company funded the cash portion otdlted net purchase price with borrowings undesésured credit facilities. Approximately 1!
of the total net purchase price was depositeddrogsto secure the post-closing indemnificationigdtions of the former Kiddopotamus
stockholders, including the Principal Stockholdersder the terms of the agreement.

The following table summarizes the fairued of the assets acquired and liabilities asswah#te date of acquisition of Kiddopotamus by
Summer:

(In Thousands)

Trade receivable $ 2,28¢
Inventory 3,25¢
Other Asset: 74C
Property and equipme 48
Trade name and other intangible as 3,71(
Goodwill 4,85(
Deferred tax benefit 30¢&
Total assets acquire 15,19t
Total liabilities assume 1,52¢
Net assets acquire $ 13,67:

The pro forma effect on net revenues, egsjiand diluted earnings per share amounts foygheended December 31, 2008, assuming
the Basic Comfort and Kiddopotamus transactionsdiaskd on January 1, 2008, is as follows:

(In Thousands)
Net revenues 138,29¢

$
Net income: $ 4,76
Earnings per share: dilutt $ 0.31 per sha

Butterfly Living Acquisitior

On July 17, 2009, the Company enteredamté\sset Purchase Agreement (the "Acquisition Agead") to acquire Butterfly Living, LLC
("Butterfly"), under which the Company acquiredte@r assets and liabilities of Butterfly, an inntiva manufacturer of infant cribs,
headquartered in Pennsylvania.
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SUMMER INFANT, INC. AND SUBSIDIAIRES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

The Company accounted for the acquisitiotden new guidance effective January 1, 2009. Téns guidance requires that all assets,
liabilities, contingent considerations, and conéingies of an acquired business be recorded atdhie at the acquisition date. In addition,
acquisition costs generally must be expensed asrixt.

Total purchase price recorded in conneatiih the acquisition was approximately $4,100,060luding approximately $3,600,000
representing the estimated fair value of contingamb-out consideration to be paid quarterly thhoR@13 based on the achievement of certain
financial targets. The first payment is due in A®010. Approximately $74,000 was paid in cashruplosing.

The Company funded the cash portion otdked net purchase price from cash on hand. Tl stdck consideration of $461,000 was
deposited in escrow to secure the pdesing indemnification obligations of the formeutierfly stockholders under the terms of the agreet

The following table summarizes the estirdgigeliminary fair values of the assets acquired la@bilities assumed at the date of acquisi
of Butterfly by Summer:

(In Thousands)
Inventory $ 1,147
Other Intangible Asse 81z
Goodwill 4,59¢
Accounts Payable and accrued liabilities assu (2,452
Total purchase considerati $ 4,10¢€

The Company has made a preliminary allocadif the excess purchase price to a specific @it asset (customer list); this allocation
was based on an initial analysis of the variouarigible assets being acquired by Summer. The Coyripan the process of finalizing its
allocation and expects to adjust its allocatiomeduired, in the first quarter of 2010.

The goodwill arising from the acquisitioonsists largely of synergies and economies of sogtected from selling Butterfly products
through the Company's significant distribution chand to existing customers. The goodwill is expedd be fully deductible for tax purposes.

The estimated earn-out liability was cadtedl using a discount rate of 3.27% to discoun$th800,000 potential future liability to its
present value, then reduced for certain closingsidjents to $3,600,000. Management has conclu@gdhtd full potential earn out should be
recorded at the time of acquisition (net of preseattie) based upon current sales generated byrByeoducts as well as projections of futi
business. The liability is recorded in other liglgk in the accompanying consolidated balancetshed did not require adjustment at
December 31, 2009.

Management believes the pro forma impathefacquisition on net income and net income paresis not material.
Fair Value Measuremen

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company &tbthe new standard regarding fair value whichldisthes a new framework for measuring
fair value and expands related disclosures. Broalé/framework requires fair value to be determiibased on the exchange price that would
be received for
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exi¢g) in the principal or most advantageous maitethe asset or liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants. The stanestablished a three-level valuation hierarchsedaupon observable and non-observable
inputs.

Observable inputs reflect market data oletéifrom independent sources, while unobservapletéreflect our market assumptions.
Preference is given to observable inputs. Theseypes of inputs create the following fair valuerairchy:

Level 1—Quoted prices for identical instrumentsative markets.

Level 2—Quoted prices for similar instruments itivee markets; quoted prices for identical or simitestruments in markets that are
not active; and model-derived valuations whose tisjane observable or whose significant value dsiaee observable.

Level 3—Significant inputs to the valuation modeg anobservable.

The Company maintains policies and procesitw value instruments using the best and mastaet data available. In addition, the
Company utilizes risk management resources th&wewvaluation, including independent price validati

The Company uses derivatives to fix interates. As a matter of policy, the Company dodsise derivatives for speculative purposes.
This is a requirement in the Company's loan agreéioeemitigate interest rate risk.

The Company recognizes the fair value tdrigst rate swaps using Level 2 inputs. The Comipdimancial instruments include cash and
cash equivalents, accounts and notes receivaldeest rate swaps, accounts payable, accrued eegyaarsd short and long-term borrowings.
Because of their short maturity, the carrying antewfi cash and cash equivalents, accounts and remteivable, accounts payable, accrued
expenses and short-term borrowings approximatevédire. The carrying value of lortgrm borrowings approximates fair value, whichaséx
on quoted market prices or on rates availablegdtbmpany for debt with similar terms and matusitie

In the fourth quarter of 2008, the Compeegorded a change in fair value of its interest stap. The effect was a decrease in the fair
value of the swaps of approximately $1,150,000,améhcrease in interest expense of $1,150,00@f Ascember 31, 2009 the fair value of
the swaps now reflects a liability of approximat$B821,000, which is included in "other liabilitiest the accompanying balance sheet. The
change in fair value of the swap liability is rested in "interest expense”. The interest rate s\aa@®ot accounted for as hedges.

The notional amounts under the interest satap agreements total $20 million, which is apipnately 60% of the Company's total
outstanding bank debt at December 31, 2009.

Income taxe

Income taxes are computed using the asskliability method of accounting. Under the asaad liability method, a deferred tax asset or
liability is recognized for estimated future taxeefs attributable to temporary differences andyarwards. The measurement of deferred
income tax assets is adjusted by a valuation athewaif necessary, to recognize future tax benefitg to the extent, based on available
evidence, it is more likely than not such benefii be realized.
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Effective January 1, 2007, the Company &tbthe provisions of a new standard which provisiled guidance for the financial
statement recognition, measurement and disclosureaertain tax positions recognized in the finahstatements. Tax positions must meet a
"more-likely-than-not" recognition threshold at té#ective date to be recognized upon adoptioniamsdibsequent periods. Upon the adoption,
and at December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Companyadidave any uncertain tax positions. No interast @enalties related to uncertain tax
positions were accrued at December 31, 2009 an8.200

The tax years 2005 through 2009 remain @pexamination by the major taxing jurisdictionsahich the Company operates. The
Company expects no material changes to unrecogtazeubsitions within the next twelve months.

Translation of Foreign Currencies

The assets and liabilities of the CompaBypean, Canadian, and Asian operations havetteesiated into U.S. dollars at year-end
exchange rates. All assets and liabilities of tbenfany's foreign affiliates are translated into.Wi8lars at the exchange rate in effect at the
end of the year and the income and expense accolittsse affiliates have been translated at aeeraigs prevailing during each respective
year. Resulting translation adjustments are madestparate component of stockholders' equity wilktcumulated other comprehens
income (loss).

Shipping Costs

Shipping costs are included in selling exg@s and amounted to approximately $2,566,000 &/88%,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Advertising Cost

The Company charges advertising costs pemse as incurred. Advertising expense, which stsprimarily of promotional and
cooperative advertising allowances provided toamsts, was approximately $10,827,000 and $8,749f00the years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008, respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assusfiit affect certain reported amounts and digoéss Accordingly, actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Net Income Per Sha

Diluted earnings per share for the Compargpmputed by dividing net income by the sum lo& weighted-average number of shares of
common stock outstanding during the period; thetidié impact of "in the money"” stock options; amyested restricted shares issued to
employees. Options to purchase 957,600 and 99%28@s of the Company's common stock were notdedlin the calculation, due to the
fact that these options were anti-dilutive for ylears ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.
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New Accounting Pronounceme

The FASB Accounting Standards Codificatiof®bdification) is the source of authoritative aaating principles recognized by the FA
to be applied by nongovernmental entities in theppration of financial statements in conformityhW@AAP. Rules and interpretive release:
the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") wadthority of federal securities laws are alsorses of authoritative GAAP for SEC
registrants. The adoption of the codification hadmpact on the Company's financial position, ressaf operations or cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued new rofesoncontrolling interests in consolidated finahstatements. The relevant content
addresses consolidation rules for noncontrollinigrsts. It applies to all entities that prepanmesotidated financial statements, except for not-
for-profit organizations, but withffectonly those entities that have an outstanding nancling interest in one or more subsidiaries atth
deconsolidate a subsidiary. The Company adoptedultigance in this topic as of January 1, 2009, widhmaterial impact.

In March 2008, the FASB issued a pronourergmertaining to disclosures about derivativerimaents and hedging activities. The
relevant content enhances the disclosure requireni@nderivative instruments and related hedgeahst accounted for under FASB ASC 815
and how derivative instruments and related hedgeds affect an entity's financial position, finaigerformance and cash flows. The
Company adopted the guidance in this topic asmfigiy 1, 2009, with no material impact. See sigaifit accounting policies section for
additional disclosures.

In December 2007, the FASB issued guidamcehanges in the accounting for and reportingusiriiess acquisitions. The objective is to
provide consistency to the accounting and finangpbrting of business combinations by using omlg method, the purchase method. This
Statement has been applied prospectively to busitmsbinations for which the acquisition date isoomafter January 1, 2009 and has been
applied to the 2009 acquisition discussed above.

The Company does not believe that any atheently issued, but not yet effective accounsitejdards will have a material effect on the
Company's consolidated financial position, resoltsperations, or cash flows.

Certain items as of and for the year eridedember 31, 2008 have been reclassified to confdtinthe current year presentation.
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2. RESTATEMENT—2008

In 2007 and 2008 the Company entered iat@us interest rate swap agreements that areregby the Company's loan agreement with
Bank of America. The interest rate swaps are uséebtige against potential increases in interess fay locking in a portion of the outstanding
debt at a fixed rate. The fair value of the swaps determined to be immaterial from the inceptibthe swaps until the fourth quarter of 20
During the fourth quarter of 2008, the fair valieciihed due to the dislocation in the financial keds, but this was not recorded by the
Company. In addition, the Company concluded thepsvetp not qualify for hedge accounting treatmeher&fore, the Company has restate
2008 results to record an increase in net liabgitind a reduction of stockholders' equity (throaiglafter-tax charge in the income statement)
of $700,000, which reflects the reduced fair vadtithe swaps at December 31, 2008. This reducetisdiders' equity from $62,200,000 to
$61,500,000 at December 31, 2008. As long as tlmep@ay keeps these swaps in place until they tetsif@s required by the bank), the fair
value will be adjusted each quarter and will ultiehareturn to zero. The restatement of 2008 foqrthrter and annual results has no impact on
operating income or cash flow of the Company. Then@any filed its amended 2008 Form 10-K/A on Jayda010.

3. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment, at cost, consithefollowing:

Depreciation/

December 31 higow
Amortization

2009 2008 Period
(In Thousands)
Computer $ 2,03 $ 1,46 5 year.
Tools and dies and
Prototypes 10,15¢ 7,60¢ 1-5 year
Building 4,15¢€ 4,15¢€ 30 year
Other 2,05¢ 1,52¢ various

18,40¢ 14,75:
Less accumulated

depreciatior 6,91¢ 3,541
Property and Equipmer
net $ 11,48¢ $ 11,21%

Property and equipment includes amountsieed under capital leases of approximately $91% &¢d $827,000 at December 31, 200¢
2008, respectively, with related accumulated deatien of approximately $241,000 and $164,000, eeipely. Depreciation is included in
general and administrative expenses in the accopnmugnonsolidated statements of income. Total dept®n expense was $3,579,000 and
$2,493,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002@08, respectively.

4. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill

Gooduwill is tested for impairment on an aahbasis and more frequently if facts and circameés indicate goodwill carrying values
exceed estimated fair values. Because the Compasfully integrated its acquisitions, it has detieied that it has only one reporting unit for
purposes of testing for goodwill impairment. Basedthe impairment tests performed, there was naimment of goodwill in 2009 or 2008.
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The change in goodwill during the yearseshBecember 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 watlasd:

(In Thousands)

2009 2008
Balance at beginning of ye $ 40,45. $ 30,82(

Acquisitions and other additiol 5,04 9,63
Balance at end of ye: $ 45,49¢ $ 40,45:.

Intangible asset
Intangible assets consist of the following:

December 31

2009 2008
(In Thousands)

Brand name $ 10,90 $ 10,90(
Patents and licens 1,581 1,30
Customer listt 2,35¢ 1,54:
Other intangible: 1,99/ 1,94¢

16,83( 15,69:
Less:Accumulated amortizatic (2,126 (562)
Intangible assets, n $ 15,70 $ 15,13(

The amortization period for the intangibbsets ranges from 5 to 10 years for those assthdve an estimated life; certain of the assets
have indefinite lives (including brand names angesa significant customer relationships). Thereswa impairment of intangible assets in
2009 or 2008.

Amortization expense amounted to $564,0@D%890,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002@08, respectively. Estimated
amortization expense for the next five years ifoHews:

Year ending December 31 (In Thousands)

2010 $ 70€
2011 69t
2012 45¢
2013 43C
2014 65
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5. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
Accounts payable and accrued expensesstarighe following:

December 31,

2009 2008
(In Thousands)

Accounts payabl $ 17,91( $ 14,69
Customer advertising and allowan 3,13¢ 2,652
Accrued purchases of inventc 3,86( 3,215
Other (none in excess of 5% of curr

liabilities) 5,072 2,48
Total $ 29,97¢ $ 23,04:

6. DEBT
Credit Facilities

On April 10, 2008, the Company entered imto three-year secured credit facilities (the "hdggreement") with Bank of America, N.A.,
as Administrative Agent, and each of the finantiatitutions a signatory to the Loan Agreement. Than Agreement provides for a
$36,000,000 working capital revolving credit fagiland a $10,000,000 non-restoring acquisitionitfedility. The amounts outstanding under
the revolving credit facility are payable in fuppon maturity. The acquisition credit facility isy@dle in monthly installments of approximately
$158,000, with the balance of approximately $6,000,payable upon maturity. The new credit facsitieature on June 30, 2011. The amount
outstanding on the credit facilities at December28D9 was $33,461,000, and the amount of avaitiabibs approximately $12,000,000.

Aggregate maturities of long term debttesdieto this note are as follows:

(In Thousands)

Year ending December 3 2010 $ 1,89¢
2011 31,56¢
Total $ 33,46

The Company and its subsidiaries, Summfant(USA), Inc. Summer Infant Europe Limited, Susrinfant Asia Limited and Summer
Infant Canada, Limited are the borrowers underltbisn Agreement. This credit facility is secureddompstantially all of the assets of the
Company.

The Company's ability to borrow under tloah Agreement is subject to its ongoing compliamite a number of financial and other
covenants, including the following: (i) that ther@pany and its subsidiaries maintain a net worthéf,000,000 plus the sum of 50% of net
income earned in each fiscal year, (ii) that thenBany and its subsidiaries maintain a ratio ofltutaded debt to EBITDA of not greater than
3.50:1.00, and (iii) that the Company and its stibsies maintain a ratio of operating cash flovdédt service of not less than 1.25:1.00.
Furthermore, if the Company's ratio of total fundietbt to EBITDA is greater than 3.25:1.00 for aisgdl year, the aggregate amount that may
be borrowed under the Loan Agreement will be deiteehby reference to a borrowing base.

These credit facilities bear interest #bating rate based on a spread over LIBOR ran§img 150 basis points to 200 basis points,
depending upon the ratio of the Company's totaliéandebt to EBITDA. The Company has also enterexhiarious interest swap agreements
which fixes the interest rates on a portion ofdbéstanding debt. As of December 31, 2009, theaatihese credit facilities
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6. DEBT (Continued)

averaged 4.60%. In addition, these credit facdlitiave an unused line fee based on the unused aofdhe credit facilities equal to 25 basis
points.

The Loan Agreement also contains custoraaents of default, including a cross default priowvisand a change of control provision. In
event of a default, all of the obligations of then@pany and its subsidiaries under the loan Agreémey be declared immediately due and
payable. For certain events of default relatingnémlvency and receivership, all outstanding oliliges become due and payable.

During 2009, the Company also initiatedcagreement to borrow against certain internatioeegivables. Approximately $472,000 relat
to this agreement is included in current portiotoofy term debt at December 31, 2009.

Sale-Leaseback

On March 24, 2009 the Company enteredardefinitive agreement with Faith Realty 1l, LLCR&ode Island limited liability company
("Faith Realty") (the members of which are Jasorcéia the current Chairman of the board of Direstand Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, and his spouse), pursuant to which FastitiR purchased the corporate headquarters ofdhg@ny located at 1275 Park East
Drive, Woonsocket, Rhode Island (the "Headquar}efsl $4,052,500 and subsequently leased the Heatlrs back to Summer USA for an
annual rent of $390,000 during the initial seveanterm of the lease, payable monthly and in adwanbe lease will expire on the seventh
anniversary of its commencement unless an optiongé exercised by Summer USA. At that time, StentdSA will have the opportunity to
extend the lease for one additional period of figars. If Summer USA elects to extend the ternhefléase for an additional five years, the
annual rent for the first two years of the extengerm shall be equal to $429,000 and for the finede years of the extension term shall be
equal to $468,000. In addition, during the first sionths of the last lease year of the initial tefithe lease, Summer USA has the option to
repurchase the Headquarters for $4,457,750 (110%edhitial sale price). With the majority of theoceeds of the sale of the headquarters
Summer USA paid off the construction loan relatioghe Headquarters. Mr. Macari has given a petguerantee to secure the Faith Realty
debt on its mortgage; therefore, due to his comipinvolvement in the building transaction and @@mpany's option to repurchase the
building, the building remains on the books of @@mpany and the transaction has been recordefirsmnaing lease, with no gain recognitic
At December 31, 2009, approximately $27,000 wakided in accounts payable and accrued expenséstheithalance of approximately
$3,767,000 included in other liabilities, in thecampanying consolidated balance sheet. This oligét reduced each month (along with a
charge to interest expense) as the rent paymemide to Faith Realty.
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On February 25, 2009, the Company's boaRirectors (with Mr. Macari and Mr. Gibree abstiaig from such action) approved the sale
leaseback transaction. In connection therewithptherd granted a potential waiver, to the extenessary, if at all, of the conflict of interest
provisions of the Company's Model code of Ethifgative upon execution of definitive agreementghini the parameters approved by the
Board. In connection with granting such potentiaiwer, the Board of Directors engaged independentsel to review the sale leaseback
transaction and an independent appraiser to aBtéijtthe value of the Headquarters and (ii) therket rent for the Headquarters. In reaching
its conclusion that the sale leaseback transa®itair to the Company, the Board of Directors ¢daesed a number of factors, including
Summer USA's ability to repurchase the headquaatet40% of the initial sale price at the end @ ithtial term.

In addition, the Company's Audit Commitsgmroved the sale leaseback transaction (as adgiarty transaction) and the potential
waiver and recommended the matter to a vote oétiiee Board of Directors (which approved the testi®n).

7. INCOME TAXES

The provision (benefit) for income taxesisnmarized as follows:

2009 2008
(In Thousands)
Current:
Federa $ 90z % 36
Foreign 864 1,204
State and Loce 462 31z
Total Current 2,22¢ 1,552
Deferred (primarily federa 192 42%
Total expens: $ 2,421 $ 1,97¢

The tax effects of temporary differenceat tomprise the deferred tax liabilities and asasgsas follows:

2009 2008
(In Thousands)

Assets (Liabilities’
Deferred tax ass-current:
Accounts receivable and inventory

reserve: $ 301 $ 60z
Research and development credit carr
forward and othe 77C —
Net deferred tax ass-current 1,071 602
Deferred tax (liability) ass-nor-current:
Intangible assets and ott (227) 26&
Property, plant and equipme (1,380 (1,21
Net deferred tax liability nc-current: (2,607 (94¢€)
Net deferred income tax liabilit $ (536 $ (349
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The following reconciles the provision focome taxes at the U.S. federal income tax statutde to the expense in the consolidated
financial statements:

2009 2008
(In Thousands)

Tax expense at statutory r: $ 2,74€ $ 2,07:
State income taxes, net of U.S. federal

income tax benef 333 28C
Tax credits (901) (300)
Non-deductible expens 25€ 31
Other (17) (208)
Total expens: $ 2,421 $ 1,97¢

8. STOCK OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED SHARES

The Company has granted stock options asiticted shares under its 2006 Performance E&léty (2006 Plan"). Under the 2006 Plan,
awards may be granted to participants in the forian-Qualified Stock Options, Incentive Stock @i, Restricted Stock, Deferred Stock,
Stock Reload Options and other stock-based awardsgect to the provisions of the plan, awards magtanted to employees, officers,
directors, advisors and consultants who are deémkdve rendered or are able to render signifisantices to the Company or its subsidiaries
and who are deemed to have contributed or to Hevpdtential to contribute to our success. Effecfianuary 1, 2006, the Company adopted
the fair value recognition standard, using the fiediprospective transition method. The applicatéthis standard resulted in share-based
compensation expense for the years ended Decerhp2039 and 2008 of $785,000 and $360,000, res@dytiStock based compensation
expense is included in selling, general and adinatise expenses.

The fair value of each option award israated on the date of grant using the Black-Schaop¢ien valuation model that uses the
assumptions noted in the following table. BecabgeGompany's common shares have only traded pypbcBummer Infant since March
2007, expected volatility for the year ended Decengi, 2009 is estimated based on an arithmetiageeof the volatility of four publicly-
traded companies that operate in Summer's indostsgll into similar markets. Summer has insuffitibistory by which to estimate the
expected term of the options, but used an estifoaigrants of "plain vanilla" stock options basadaformula prescribed by the SEC.
Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grantranded, if necessary, in subsequent periods ifehddrfeitures differ from those estimates.
Stock-based compensation expense recognized gotieolidated financial statements in 2009 and 20@&sed on awards that are ultimately
expected to vest. Because Summer's employee spoickis have characteristics significantly differéoim those of traded options and because
changes in the subjective input assumptions caenmaly affect the fair value estimate, in managatiseopinion, the existing models do not
necessarily provide a reliable single measure efair value of its stock options.
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The following table summarizes the assuomstiused for options granted during the year euesember 31, 2009 (there were no options

granted in 2008):

Expected life (in years 5.2

Risk-free interest rat 2.4%%
Volatility 35.(%
Dividend yield 0%
Forfeiture rate 10%

The weighted-average grant date fair vafugptions granted d
$788,000 for the 1,079,000 options granted dururheriod.

A summary of the status of the Companyt®ap as of Decem

uring the year ended Decembge?@09 was $0.73 per share which totals

ber 31, 2009 and changes durgeéar then ended is presented below:

Weighted-

Average

Number Of Exercise

Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning of ye 999,20( $ 5.2t
Granted 1,079,001 2.3¢
Cancelec (63,6000 $ 5.2t
Outstanding at end of ye 2,014,600 $ 3.7C
Options exercisable at December 31,

2009 582,80( $ 5.2¢

The following table summarizes informatemout stock option

Options Outstanding

s at December 31, 2009:

Options Exercisable

Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average
Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices QOutstanding Life (years) Price Exercisable Price
$5.20- $5.25 935,60( 75 $ 5.2t 582,80( $ 5.2t
$2.14- $4.33 1,079,001 92 $ 23t 0 $ 23t
Remaining
Number of Grant Date Contractual
Options Fair Value Life
Non-Vested options at
December 31, 200 624,400 $ 1.57 8.5
Options Grante: 1,079,000 $ 0.7: 9.5
Options Veste! (207,600 $ 1.57 7.2
Options forfeitec (63,600 1.57 7.5
Non-Vested options &
December 31, 200 $ 0.94 8.C

1,431,801

As of December 31, 2009, there was apprateiy $1,126,000

of unrecognized compensationreteted to non-vested stock option

awards, which is expected to be recognized overmaining weighted-average vesting period of 3 yege total fair value of options vested

during the year ended December 31, 2009 was appately $326,0

00.
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Restricted stock awards require no payrfrent the grantee. The related compensation cosacifi award is calculated using either the
market price on the grant date or the market pricéhe last day of the reported period and is es@erequally over the vesting period. A
summary of restricted stock awards for the Comgastgck incentive plan for the year ended DecerBbeP009, is as follows:

Grant

Number of Date
Shares Fair Value

Unvested restricted stock awards as ¢

December 31, 200
Granted 349,00( 2.17
Vested (87,25() 2.17
Forfeited (19,500 2.17
Unvested restricted stock awards a

December 31, 200 242,25( 2.17

As of December 31, 2009, there was apprateiy $332,000 of unrecognized compensation cdetieret to non-vested stock compensation
arrangements granted under the Company's stocktimeeplan for restricted stock awards. That cesbipected to be recognized over the next
three years. The Company did not grant any resttistock awards prior to 2009.

The Company is authorized to issue up@ @000 stock options and restricted shares uhée2@06 Plan. As of December 31, 2009,
there are 655,900 shares available to grant uhée2@06 Plan.

9. WARRANTS

The Company had 3,633,953 redeemable constock purchase warrants (the "Warrants") outstanpdt December 31, 2008. Each
Warrant entitled the holder to purchase one shiacermmon stock at an exercise price of $5.00 pareslirhe Warrants expired in April 2009,
and there are currently no warrants outstanding.

10. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS
The Company leases certain equipment uceigtal leases which expire during 2010 and 2011.
The leases require monthly payments ofggad and interest, imputed at interest rates rapgiom 3% to 19% per annum.

The capital lease liability balance of appmately $509,000 and $398,000 is included in a@ebthe consolidated balance sheets as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, (of which approxim&i2ty5,000 is included in longrm debt each year, and the balance is in cupantion of
long-term debt). The minimum future lease paymentduding principal and interest, are approximat&$62,000 and $434,000, respectively.

11. PROFIT SHARING PLAN

Summer Infant (USA), Inc maintains a defim@ntribution salary deferral plan (the Plan) urBection 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code. All employees who meet the Plan's eligibilgguirements can participate. Employees may &detiake contributions up to 25% of their
compensation. In 2007, the Company adopted a nmagtgian which was funded throughout the year. Renyears ended December 31, 2009
and 2008, the Company recorded 401(k) matchingresgpef $163,000 and $116,000, respectively.
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Sales to one customer comprised approxigna®o of net sales for the year ended Decembe@19, and sales to two customers
comprised 48% and 10% for the year ended Decenthé?0®8, respectively. Amounts due from the onéacner in 2009 and the two
customers in 2008 comprised approximately 50% &% 6f trade receivables at December 31, 2009 afifl,2@spectively.

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Royalty Commitmen

Summer Infant (USA), Inc has entered iradaus license agreements with third parties ferube of product designs and trade names for
the products manufactured by the Company. Theseawnts have termination dates through August,.ZRdgalty expense under these
licensing agreements for the years ended Decendh@089 and 2008 were approximately $910,000 aid $B0, respectively.

Customer Agreements

The Company enters into annual agreemeititsite’ customers in the normal course of busin€esse agreements define the terms of
product sales including in some instances cooperativertising costs and product return privile@esdefective products only) or defective
allowances (which are based upon historical expe€ee These contracts are generally annual in @aod obligate the Company only as to
products actually sold to the customer.

License Agreements and Lease Commitrr

Summer USA leases an office under a thesg-ggreement which requires monthly payments ifcagamately $3,000 through September
2010.

Summer USA leases certain vehicles undefraamcelable operating lease agreements. Thesslagsfor a three-year term requiring
monthly payments of approximately $8,000 througlvé&ober 2012.

Summer USA leases an office under a foar ggreement which requires monthly payments ofegmately $3,400 through July 2012.

SIE leases office space under a non-cableetgperating lease agreement. This lease isfisegyear term through April 2012, and
requires monthly payments of approximately $6,30@ddition, SIE is required to pay its proportitgahare of property taxes.

Summer Infant Canada, Ltd. entered intwexyear lease for office and warehouse space umdeneancelable operating lease agreer
expiring March 2013. The Company is obligated as plathe lease to pay maintenance expenses ass/ploperty taxes and insurance costs
as defined in the agreement. Monthly paymentshieiinitial year are approximately $13,000 and egeabver the course of the lease term.
Summer Infant Canada Ltd. has the option to refgsMease for one additional period of five yeander the same terms and conditions.

Summer Infant (USA) Inc. entered into an28nth lease for office and warehouse space undenaancelable operating lease agreement.
The Company is obligated to pay certain common ar@atenance charges including insurance andiesiliMonthly payments for the initial
year are approximately $29,750 and escalate oeerdbrse of the lease ter
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SUMMER INFANT, INC. AND SUBSIDIAIRES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

During June 2009, Summer (USA) entered anteo year lease for warehouse space under aarwelable operating lease agreement
expiring in January 2011. The Company is obligategart of the lease to pay maintenance expersdgfiaed in the agreement. Monthly
payments for the two year agreement are approxiyn@ss,000.

During December 2007, Summer (USA) entémtala three year lease for warehouse space unuen-aancelable operating lease
agreement expiring in February 2011. Summer (USAligated as part of the lease to pay maintenaxjgenses as well as property taxes and
insurance costs, as defined in the agreement. Mop&tyments for the initial year are approximat®®0,000, and escalate over the course of
the lease term. Summer (USA) has the option towehes lease for one additional period of threergamder the same general terms and
conditions. During November 2009, SIA entered ittwvo year office lease which requires monthly pagta of $6,000 through October 2011.

Approximate future minimum rental paymedite under these leases are as follows:

Year Ending (In Thousands)

December 31, 201 $ 2,11¢
December 31, 201 845
December 31, 201 242
December 31, 201 30
Total $ 3,23¢

Rent expense (excluding taxes, fees argt atiarges) for the year ended December 31, 2002@08 totaled approximately $1,629,000
and $1,923,000, respectively.

Employment Contrac!

In accordance with United Kingdom and EW,I&IE has employment contracts with all employé&@sonnection with these contracts,
SIE is required to fund the individual pension cimitions of certain employees at varying ratesnfis? to 10% of the employee's annual
salary, as part of their total compensation pack@bese pension contributions are expensed asr@tturhere are no termination benefit
provisions in these contracts.

Factoring Agreemer

In 2009 SIE entered into an accounts retse/factoring agreement with Coface. SIE receatsnces from Coface based on actual
accounts receivable created by SIE. The total athsnutstanding as of December 31, 2009 totaledbzinpately $472,000, which is recorded
as a current liability.

Litigation

The Company is involved in various claimsl éegal actions arising in the ordinary courséudiness. Management is of the opinion that
the ultimate outcome of these matters would noetematerial adverse impact on the financial pmsitif the Company or the results of its
operations.
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14. GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

The Company distributes branded durable Ipabducts throughout the United States, Canaditl@United Kingdom, and various other
parts of the world.

The following is a table that presentsnegenue by geographic area:

December 31

2009 2008
(In Thousands)
North America $ 144,437 $ 125,01
All Other 9,04¢ 7,351

$ 153,48. $ 132,36

The following is a table that presentsitatsets by geographic area:

2009 2008
(In Thousands)
North America $ 137,22( $ 127,18¢
Europe 4,19t 3,27:
Asia 53¢ 73

$ 141,95! $ 130,53!

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
No subsequent events occurred which reglis@osure or accrual in the financial statements.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Sed®or 15 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Ad984, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigtieereunto duly authorized on the 10th day ofd&010.

SUMMER INFANT, INC.

By: /sl JASON MACARI

Jason Macari
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

By: /s/ JOSEPH DRISCOLL

Joseph Driscoll
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office

In accordance with the Securities Exchaigteof 1934, this report has been signed belowheyftllowing persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the datisated.

Name Title Date

/s/ JASON MACARI Director and Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

March 10, 2010

Jason Macal
/s/ JOSEPH DRISCOLL Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting March 10, 2010
Joseph Driscol Officer)

/s/ STEVEN GIBREE Executive Vice President of Product

Development and Director

March 10, 2010
Steven Gibre:

/sl MARTIN FOGELMAN

Director March 10, 2010
Martin Fogelmar

/sl ROBERT STEBENNE

Director March 10, 2010
Robert Stebenn
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Name

/sl RICHARD WENZ

Richard Wen:

/sl DERIAL SANDERS

Derial Sander

/sl DAN ALMAGOR

Dan Almagor

Director

Director

Director

Title
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Exhibits.

Exhibit Description
2.1 Agreement and Plans of Reorganization dated &epfember 1, 2006, by and among
KBL Healthcare Acquisition Corp. Il, and its wholbyvned subsidiary, Sl Acquisition
Corp. ("Acquisition Sub"), Summer Infant, Inc. (I'J, Summer Infant Europe, Limited
("SIE") and Summer Infant Asia, Ltd. ("SIA" and liectively, with Sll and SIE, the
"Targets") and the stockholders of the Target
2.2 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated March 24, 2Q0@&e Summer Infant (USA), Ir
("Summer (USA)") and Faith Realty Il, LLC ("FaitreRlty")(8)
2.2 Lease Agreement dated March 24, 2009 between Suif) and Faith Realty(¢
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatip
3.2 Bylaws(3)
4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate
4.2 Specimen Warrant Certificate(
4.2 Warrant Agreement(<
10.1 Revolving Credit Agreement by and among Bank of Aiogg N.A. and Summer
Infant, Inc., Et al, dated April 10, 2008(
10.z Amendment to Revolving Credit Agreement by and agnBank of America, N.A. and
Summer Infant, Inc., Et al, dated June 30, 2008.
10Z Construction Loan Agreement by and between the Bd#merica, N.A. and Faith
Realty, LLC dated December 21, 2006
10.2 Secured Promissory Note made by Faith Realty inrfaf Bank of America, N.A.(2
10.5 Open-End Mortgage and Security Agreement by anddsst Faith Realty, LLC and
Bank of America, N.A. dated December 21, 200t
10.€ Collateral Assignment of Leases and Rents madealilt Realty, LLC in favor of Bank
of America, N.A. dated December 21, 200¢
10.7 Assignment of Project Contracts made by Faith RebltC in favor of Bank of
America, N.A. dated December 21, 200€
10.¢ Assumption and Modification Agreement by and ambagh Realty, LLC, Summer
Infant, Inc., and Bank of America, N.A. dated Ma&;007(2]
10.¢ Revolving Credit Agreement by and among Bank of Aioge N.A. and Summer
Infant, Inc., Summer Infant Europe Limited, and Suen Infant Asia Limited dated
July 19, 2005, as amended on December 29, 2004,3%r2006, July 31 2006, and
December 21, 2006(:
10.1C Amendment to Revolving Credit Agreement dated JgnB8@, 2008 by and among Ba
of America, N.A. and Summer Infant, Inc., Summdair Europe Limited, and Summn
Infant Asia Limited dated July 19, 2005, as amen@
10.11 Security Agreement by and between Summer Infant,dnd Bank of America, N.A.

dated July 19, 2005(:
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Exhibit Description
10.12 Deed of Guarantee and Debenture between Sumfiaet Burope Limited and Bank of
America, N.A. dated October 28, 2005

10.1: Acquisition agreement by and between Kiddopotanmags@ompany and Summer
Infant, Inc., dated April 18, 2008(

10.1¢ Registration Rights Agreement, dated as f April2@)8, by and among Summer
Infant, Inc. and J. Chris Snedeker and KristenBeteSnedeker (¢

10.1t Voting Agreement(1
10.1¢ Escrow Agreement(]

10.17 Registration Rights Agreement by and among the Gammand Jason Macari and
Steven Gibree(1

10.1€" Dr. Marlene Krauss Employment Agreemen:
10.1¢"* Jason Macari Employment Agreement
10.2(** Steven Gibree Employment Agreement
10.27"* Joseph Driscoll Employment Agreement
10.22" 2006 Performance Equity Plan

10.2: Distribution and License Agreement by and betwelka Blanket Factory Ltd. and
Summer Infant, Inc. dated February 9, 200°

16.1 Former Independent Registered Public AccountinmmFionfirmation Letter(7
21.1 List of Subsidiaries(5

23.1° Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourfing

23.2" Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourfing

31.1° Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

31.2" Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuamt $ection 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

32.1° Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350
(Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2° Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuawt18 U.S.C. Section 1350 (Section 906
of the Sarban«-Oxley Act of 2002

*%

(1)
)
3)
(4)

Filed herewitt

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrarge

Incorporated by reference to Annex A of the DefugtProxy Statement (No. 000-51228), filed Februedy 2007
Incorporated by reference to the Current Repoftamm &K filed March 12, 200°

Incorporated by reference to the For-A filed March 6, 2007

Incorporated by reference to the Registration State on Form -1 (File No. 33-122988) filed February 25, 20(
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(5) Incorporated by reference to the Annual Report om+10-K filed March 27, 2008

(6) Incorporated by reference to the Current Repofam ¢-K filed April 18, 2008

) Incorporated by reference to the Current Repoffamn 8-K filed May 27, 2009

(8) Incorporated by reference to the Amendment to @uigrReport on Form 10-Q/A filed August 18, 2009
9) Incorporated by reference to the Quarterly Repororm 1-Q filed May 12, 200¢

(10) Incorporated by reference to Amendment No. 2 touvshiReport on Form -K/A filed August 18, 200¢
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporationdfgnence of our report dated March 24, 2009 (exfmptiote 2, as to which the date is
January 4, 2010), included in this Form 10-K ondbaesolidated financial statements of Summer Infantt as of December 31, 2008 and for
the year then ended, to the Company's previouslg fegistration statements on Form S-8 (No. 333725), and Form S-3/A (No. 333-
164241).

/s/ McGladrey & Pullen, LLP

MCGLADREY & PULLEN, LLP
New York, New York

March 10, 2010
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Exhibit 23.2
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

As independent registered public accoustamé hereby consent to the incorporation of oporedated March 10, 2010, relating to the
consolidated financial statements of Summer Infartt, and Subsidiaries as of and for the year efsmEmber 31, 2009, included in this
Form 10-K, into the Company's previously filed Retgition Statements on Form S-8 (No. 333-15672&) fin January 15, 2009 and Form S-
3/A (No. 333-164241) filed February 2, 2010.

/sl Caturano & Company, P.C.
Boston, Massachusetts
March 10, 2010
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, Jason Macari, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual RepartFmrm 10-K of Summer Infant, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this repodsinot contain any untrue statement of a matigalor omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistanmces under which statements were made, notadistgwith respect to the period covered
by this report.

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansiatements, and other financial information ineldiéh this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report.

4. The registrant's other certifyinfadr and | are responsible for establishing anéhtaaing disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controlsmodedures, or caused such disclosure controlpreuogdures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control ovearficial reporting, or caused, such internal cdrtver financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeittierally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of #gistrant's disclosure controls and procedurepeggkbnted in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougredis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any changéhe registrant's internal control over financegorting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that haernadly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the internal control over
financial reporting.

5. The registrant's other certifyindiagr and | have disclosed, based on our most temeriuation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataamimittee of the board of directors:

a) All significant deficiencies and nm@éweaknesses in the design or operation of iiatecontrol over financial reporting whi
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize aport financial information, and;

b) Any fraud, whether or not materidkt involves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

March 10, 2010 /sl JASON MACARI

Jason Macat
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
I, Joseph Driscoll, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual RepartFmrm 10-K of Summer Infant, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this repodsinot contain any untrue statement of a matigalor omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistanmces under which statements were made, notadistgwith respect to the period covered
by this report.

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansiatements, and other financial information ineldiéh this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report.

4. The registrant's other certifyinfadr and | are responsible for establishing anéhtaaing disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controlsmodedures, or caused such disclosure controlpreoogdures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control owearficial reporting, or caused, such internal cdrtver financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assereegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of #gistrant's disclosure controls and procedurepaggkbnted in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougredis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any changéhe registrant's internal control over financegorting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that haenadly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the internal control over
financial reporting.

5. The registrant's other certifyindiagr and | have disclosed, based on our most temeriuation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataamimittee of the board of directors:

a) All significant deficiencies and nm@éweaknesses in the design or operation of iiatecontrol over financial reporting whi
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize aport financial information, and;

b) Any fraud, whether or not materidkt involves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

March 10, 2010 /s/ JOSEPH DRISCOLL

Joseph Driscol
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Exhibit 32.1

SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Annual Report oniRdk0-K of Summer Infant, Inc. (the "Company") foetyear ended December 31, 2009 (the
"Report"), as filed with the Securities and Exchau@pmmission on the date hereof, I, Jason Macaief&xecutive Officer of the Company,
certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as sstbpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxt#yA2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78
(a) or 780(d)); and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial cGadiand results of operations
of the Company.

March 10, 201( /sl JASON MACARI

Jason Macari
Chief Executive Office







Exhibit 32.2

SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Annual Report oniRdk0-K of Summer Infant, Inc. (the "Company") foetyear ended December 31, 2009 (the
"Report"), as filed with the Securities and Excha@pmmission on the date hereof, |, Joseph DrisCbiief Financial Officer of the Company,
certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as sstbpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxt#yA2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78
(a) or 780(d)); and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial cGadiand results of operations
of the Company.

March 10, 201( /s JOSEPH DRISCOL

Joseph Driscoll
Chief Financial Officel







